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HAGUE, SAHADY & C

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
126 President Avenue
Fall River, MA 02720
TEL. (508) 673889
FAX (508) 673859
www.haguesahady.com

Independent Auditoré Report

The Honorable Members of the
Town Council
Town of Lincoln, Rhodelsland

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanyingaficial statements of the governmental activitteg, businessype

activities, each major fund, and the aggregateremainingfund information of the Town of Lincoln, Rhode
Island (Town) as of andfor the year endedJune 30, 2019, andthe related notesto the financid statements
which collectively compris¢he Town'dasic financial statements bstedin thetable of contents

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managemenis responsible for the pparation and fair presentation thiesefinancid statementsin accordance
with accountingprinciples generally acceptedin the United States of Americdhis includes the design,
implementation, and maintenanceimternalcontrol relevant tahepreparation and fair presentation of ficzl
statementshatarefree frommaterial misstatement whether due to fraudeoror.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with audig standards generally acceptedha UnitedStates of America antie standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that weapt#perform the audit to obtain reasonalalesurance

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financialstatementsThepr ocedur es s el ect ejddgndeatprelndihg therasséstnment afthel i t o
risks of material misstatement of theancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controbrgléy the entity's preparation and fair preseoratif the

financial statementi® order to design audit pcedures thatra appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the emiigyisalcontrol. Accordingly, we express

no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accountires pudéed and the
reasonableness of significant accountirsgineates made by management,vadl as evaluating the overall
presentatin of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficiemipgmndpriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

(Continued)
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in afiahedepects, the respective
financial position of the governmentattivities, the businedype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Lincoln, Rhode Island, as of June 30, a6l the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows theoedhé year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principks generally accepted in the United States of America require thatlahagement's
Discussion andAnalysis, general fund and school unrestricted budgetary comparison information, and
supplementary pension and other pasiployment bendfinformation as ikted in the table of contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statem8aot$ information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who ciansidersan

essentl part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the requireansapgly
information in accordancerith auditing standrds generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our ingtigebasic finanel statements, and

other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Lincoln, Rhode Island's financial statementsCa@itmdining NorMajor Fund financials
statements, thaupplementary tax collector's annual repartd the annual supplemental transparency portal
(MTP2) is presented for purposes of additioralalysis ands not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The Combinirg NonMajor Fund financials statements, thgpplementary tax collector's annual repard the
annual supplemental transparency portal (MTP2)tlaeerespasibility of management andene derived from
andrelates directly to theunderlyng accounting and otherrecords used to prepare the finangitements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the §tzeniahts
and certain additimal procedures, including comparing and reconciling sudbrmation directly to the
underlying accouiing and other records used poepare the financial statements tor the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in @cemdith auditing standards generally accepted
in the United Stas of America. In our opiniorthe Combining NofMajor Fund financials statements, the
supplementary tax collector's annual repartd the annual supplemental transparency portal (MTP23idse
statedin all material respect# relation to the basitnancial statements aswhole

(Continued)
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witlisovernment Auditing Standardse have also is&d our reportlatedJanuary31, 2020, on

our consideration of the Townmternal control ovefinancial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreeamehtsther matters. The purpose of that
report issolely to describe the scope of our testing of inéd control over finacial reporting and compliance

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opiniadnlore e f f ect i v e mtersabcorrdl t h e
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an atfitnped in accordance

with Government Auditing Standards considering the Town of Lincoln, Rhode Island's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

/%70’“—, %/’Mg{ia/ 3! ﬁu PCI/

Fall River, Masachusetts
Januany3l, 220



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Management of th@own of Lincoln (the Town) provides this Management's Discussionamalysis of the
Town's Annual Financial Report for the readers of the Towmes£ial statementsThis narrative overview and
analysis of the financial statements of the Town igHefiiscal yearendedJune 30, 209. We encourage readers
to consider this information in conjunction with the Towaglited basic financiatatements andotes to the
financial statements.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the auttivgistandard setting body that provides
guidance on how to prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted acqmimtiptes

(GAAP). Users of these financial statements (such as investors and rating agencies) rely on the GASB to
edablish consistent reporting standards for all governments in the United States. This consistent application is
the only way users (includg citizens, the media, legislators and others) can assess the financial condition of one
government compared to otke

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Governmental Fund Financial Statements:

At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund balance foGiweral Fund was $7,312,835 or 9.03% of total
budgeted revenues of $81,012,649. This is a decrease of $1,232,842 froyeanrioind balance.

At the end of the curreffitscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the GelReralwas$6,105,778 or 9.3%
of fiscal year 202 budgeted expenditures and sers to other funds. This é&decreasef $1,570,000verthe
prior year unassigned General Fund balance.

The Town's @neral Fund had an operatideficit of $1,232,842 The School Departmenperations resulted in
an operatingleficit of $1,699,637

GovernmemntWide Financial Statements:

As reported in the governmewide financial statements, the assets and deferred outflows of resources of the
Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$36,674,802.

The To wn Oopwsitibnancreaked bye&@%H04for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

The total debt related to bonds, and notes of the Town of Lincoln increased by $22,839,324. This increase is due
to a bond anticipation note of $25,000,000.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIA L STATEMENTS

This discussionand nal ysi s i s intended to serve as an intro
These basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) govenmdefihancial statements, 2) fund

financial statementgnd 3) notes to the financial &ments. The governmewnide financial statements provide

both longterm and shofterm information about the Town as a whole. The fund financial statements focus the

i ndividual components of gthereTdvoerwinsd s g vedailr tieah dneotn,s  ri
governmertwvide statements. Both presentations (governmaadé and fund) allow the user to address relevant
guestions, broaden the basis of compari sonoféghad enh

basic financial statem&are the notes to the financial statements. fBpert also contains other required
supplementary informatigand supplementary informatiamaddition to the basitnancial statements.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GovernmentWide Statements

The governmentvide statements report information about the Town as a whole asgmunting methods
similar to those used by privasector companies. The statement of net positicdndes all of the government's
assets, deferred outflows odsources, liabilities, and deferred inflows resources. All of the current year's
revenue and expenses are accounted for in the staterinantivities regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

The two governmentide statements report the Town&t position and how they have changed. Net position
the difference between the Town's assetferded outflows of resourceand liabilities and deferred inflows of
resourcesis one way to mesure the Town's financial health, or position.

AoOver time, hcreases or decreases in the Town's net position are an indicator of wtsefinancial
health is improving or deterioratinggspectively.

ATo assess the overall health of the Toaahgitional norfinancial factors should beonsidered, such as
changesn the Town's property tax base and the condition of the Towads.

The governmentvide financial statements ofi¢ Town, which can béound onpages # through 170of this
report, are divided into twecategories:

AGovernmental activities Most of theTown's basic services are included here, sisgucation,
police, library, public works andgeneraladministration Propertytaxes,chargedor services and
statefunding finance most of theaetivities.

A Businesdype activites— The Town charges feeto customers to cover the costs afrtain
services it provides. The Town's water system, sewer systachpolice special detaibre
included here

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain comtesl resources that haveeen
segregatedor specific activities or objectives.The Town, like other stateand local governmentsusesfund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with firraetated legal requirements.

The fund financial statenentsfocus on individual parts of the Town government,reporting the Town's
operations in more detail than the governmeitte statements. All of the funds of the Town dan
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, andafigfunds. It is important
to note that these fund categories use different accounting approaches andslimtelgpreteddifferently.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Governmental funds- Most of the basic services provided bg ffrown are financedhroughgovernmental
funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially thefsaoteonsreported as governmental
activities in the governmentide financial statements. However, unlikee governmentwide financial
statemats, the governmental fund statements focus on-tegar inflows and outflows of spendable
resources. They also focus on the balances of spendable resait&isleat the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating tp@vernmat's neatermfinancing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govewide=fihancial statements, it

is useful to compare the information presented for governmental fundssimiitar information preented ér
governmental activitiesni the governmenwide financial statements.By doing so, readers may better
understandthe long-term impact of the government'snearterm financingdecisions. Both the governmental
funds balancelget and thegovernmental fundstatement ofevenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitatds comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The Town maintains mangovernmental funds. wo governmental funds are considd major funds for
presentation purposes; that is, each major fund is presented in a separate cdahwrgoywernmentalfund
financial statementsThe Town's two major governmentalfunds are the General Fund and the School
Unrestrictedrunds.

The basigovernmental fund financial statements can be faumghges 18 and 200of this report.

Proprietary funds— The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund (Enterprise FuBd)erprisefunds
are used to report the same functions presentedas businesgdype activities in the governmentwide
financial statementsThe Town usesenterprisefundsto accountfor its water operation, sewer operations
and police specialetails. :

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be foupdgas 2-25 of this report.

Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the bengfiartés
outsidethe government.Fiduciary funds are not reflectedin the governmerwide financial statements
because the resources of those funds ateamailable to support the Town's own prograrmbe
accountingisedorfiduciaryfundsismuchlike thatusedor proprietaryfunds.

The basididuciary funds finan@al statements can be found cages?26-27 of this report.

Notesto the Financial Statements — The notesprovide additionalinformationthatis essentiako a full
understandin@f thedataprovidedin thegovernmenwide andfundfinancial statementsThenotesto the
financialstatement®llow thebasidinancialstatements.

The notes cabe found on pages 283 of thisreport.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Required Supplementary Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplemsgntinformation. Such information includes
budgetarycomparisonschedulesand reconciliations of the statutoryfund balancefor budgetarypurposes
and the fund balancesfor the General Fund as presentedin the governmentdund financial statements.
Also included in required supplementary information asehedulesconcerning the Town's other
postemployment benefitsd pension liabilitiesRequired supplementary information follow® notesto the
financial statements.

Supplementary Information - In addiion to the required supplementary, this report also presents other
supplementary informatigrStatelaw requiresthe presentationof the Tax Collectors Annual Report,and

the MTP2 Municipal Transparency Portal. This other supplementary information danrgeimmediately
following the required supplementary information.

Relationship of Statements and Schedulesitluded in this Report

Table 1shows how the requiredcaps of this annual report are arranged and how they relate to one another. In
addition b these required elements, the Town has included a section with combining statements that provide
details about the Town's nanajor governmental funds and fiduciamnfls, which are added together and
presergdin a single column in the basic financist®ments.

5 MD&A

& g’ Government-wide
®© Statements

3 0 . . :
g T (Major) Fund Financial
7 8 Statements

0 g Financial Section Notes to Financial
(?Q) ) Statements

- RSI other than MD&A

Info. on nonmajor funds &
other supplementary info.
not required

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Relationship of Statements and Scheduldsicluded in this Report(Continued)

Table 2summarizeghe major featuresof the Town's financial statementsincluding the portion of the
Town governmentthey cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this
overviewsectionof management'discussiomand analysisexplainsthe structureand contentsof eachof

Fund Statements

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

thestatements.
Government-Wide
Statements
Scope Entire town government

(except fiduciary funds)

Required financial

statements Statement of activities

Accounting basis and Accrual accounting and
measurement focus

Type of assets/ All assets and liabilities
liability information
and short-term and

long-term

Type of inflow/
outflow information

or paid.

The activities of the Town
that are not proprietary
or fiduciary, such as
police, rescue and DPW.

Modified accrual accounting
economic resources focusand current financial resources

focus.

Only assets expected to be used
both financial and capital, up and liabilities that come due

Statement of net position Balance sheet, statement of
revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances.

Activities the Town
operates similar to
private businesses such
as the water system.

Statement of net position,
statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in
net position, statement of
cash flows

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus.

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,

Instances in which the
Town is the trustee

or the agent for

someone else's resources.

Statement of fiduciary,
net position, statement of
changes in fiduciary net
position.

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus.

All assets and liabilities,
both short-term and long-

during the year or soon thereafter, and short-term and long-termterm; the Town's funds

no capital assets included.

All revenue and expenses Revenues for which cash is receivell revenues and expenses
during the year, regardlessduring or soon after the end of yearduring the year, regardless
of when cashiis received expenditures when goods or

of when cash is received or

services have been received and paid.
payment is due.

GovernmentWide Financial Analysis

As notedearlier, net position magver timeserveas a useful indicator ofgoverrme nt 6 s f i

do not currently contain
capital assets,
although they can.

All additions and deductions
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received

or paid.

the case of the Town, assets aledlerred otflows exceeded liabilities andeferred inflows by $8674,802at

June 30, 204

Net investment in capital assetsomprises $2,556,774 This represents h e
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles and vessels), less any related debt used to
acquire those assetsat is still aitstanding. The dwn uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;

consequently, these s s et s

ar e

not

avail

abl e

for

nanci al

Town 6 s n capitale st me

future

spend.i

assets is repormet of related debt, it should be noted that reeources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assatsstiees cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

GovernmentWide Financial Analysis(Continued)

A portion of t h e totdling vB1RH)740 repeedentspresauices ithatnare subject to external
restrictions on how they may be usethe remainingnet position, totaling 66,305,713, may be used to meet

the governmentds ongoing obligations to citizens ar
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Assets
Current assets $ 40804528 $ 37968807 $ 7,909597 $ 7,740,828 $ 48,714,125 $ 45709,635
Non current assets 91,072,343 81,039,063 32,953,511 32,952,854 124,025,854 113,991,917
Total assets 131,876,871 119,007,870 40,863,108 40,693,682 172,739979 159,701,552

Deferred outflows of resources

Pension related outflows 11,604,290 18,184,400 16,057 18,242 11,620,347 18,202,642
OPEB related activity 2,451,822 1,604,466 - - 2,451,822 1,604,466
Other deferred outflows 973,355 983,438 - - 973,355 983,438
Total deferred outflows of resources 15,029,467 20,772,304 16,057 18,242 15,045,524 20,790,546
Liabilities

Current liabilities 11,678,381 23,368,261 698,976 941,945 12,377,357 24,310,206
Long-term liabilties 124,516,652 100,865,350 5,036,431 5,391,420 129,553,083 106,256,770
Total liabilities 136,195,033 124,233,611 5,735,407 6,333,365 141,930,440 130,566,976

Deferred inflows of resources

Pension related inflows 6,806,109 10,914,127 10,136 11,690 6,816,245 10,925,817
OPERB related inflows 2,356,426 2,367,218 - - 2,356,426 2,367,218
Other deferred inflows - 184,114 7,590 28,137 7,590 212,251
Total deferred inflows of resources 9,162,535 13,465,459 17,726 39,827 9,180,261 13,505,286
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 64,837,136 53,688,547 27,719,638 30,298,060 92,556,774 83,986,607
Restricted 423,740 4,957,582 - - 423,740 4,957,582
Unrestricted (63,712,106)  (56,565,025) 7,406,394 4,040,672 (56,305,712) (52,524,353
Total net position $ 1548770 $ 2,081,104 $ 35126032 $ 34,338,732 $ 36,674,802 $ 36,419,836

An additional portion é the Town's net positiorepresents resources that are sulifeeiternalrestrictions
onhowtheymaybeused.Theremainingbalanceof unrestrictechetpositionmaybe used to meet the Town's
ongoing obligations to citizens awdeditors. Internallymposeddesignation®fresourcegrenotpresente@s
restrictechetposition.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Changes in Net Position

The government's total net positiotreased by254,966during the currerfiscal year
Changes in Net Position

Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for service $3,046,248 $3,424,532 $ 5,310,725 $ 5,244,751 $ 8,356,973 $ 8,669,283
Operating grants & contributions 5,584,504 5,165,827 1,038,216 1,073,939 6,622,720 6,239,766
Capital grants & contributions 209,189 495,811 - - 209,189 495,811
General Revenues:
Property taxes 55,888,421 54,590,279 - - 55,888,421 54,590,279
State aid to town 2,540,314 2,466,037 - - 2,540,314 2,466,037
State aid to education 13,244,280 13,518,855 - - 13,244,280 13,518,855
Other revenue 8,148,638 8,376,499 128,474 - 8,277,112 8,376,499
Earnings on invesments 910,389 434,032 19,639 74,699 930,028 508,731
Total revenues 89,571,983 88,471,872 6,497,054 6,393,389 96,069,037 94,865,261
Expenses
General government 498,738 2,089,502 - - 498,738 2,089,502
Financial administration 1,340,809 1,069,992 - - 1,340,809 1,069,992
Public library 1,941,382 1,857,441 - - 1,941,382 1,857,441
Public safety 10,618,070 11,329,093 - - 10,618,070 11,329,093
Public services 12,111,327 10,427,754 - - 12,111,327 10,427,754
Education 63,147,871 55,360,659 - - 63,147,871 55,360,659
Interest on debt 473,621 992,939 - - 473,621 992,939
Water - - 3,589,715 3,784,195 3,589,715 3,784,195
Sewer - - 1,142,494 1,166,959 1,142,494 1,166,959
Police detalil - - 950,044 950,621 1,423,665 1,943,560
Total expenses 90,131,818 83,127,380 5,682,253 5,901,775 96,287,692 90,022,094
Increase(decrease) in net position
before transfers (559,835) 5,344,492 814,801 491,614 254,966 5,836,106
Transfers between funds 27,501 26,978 (27,501) (26,978) - -
Increase(decrease) in net posttion (532,334) 5,371,470 787,300 464,636 254,966 5,836,106
Net position, July 1 2,081,104 (3,290,366) 34,338,732 33,874,096 36,419,836 30,583,730
Net position, June 30 $1,548,770 $2,081,104 $ 35,126,032 $ 34,338,732 $36,674,802 $ 36,419,836

Governmental activities.Governmental eivities decreasethe Town's net positioby $532,334

Businesstype activities. Businesgype activities increased the Town's net positior$b§7,300

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town us@md accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- related
legal requirements.

GovernmentalFunds:

The focusof the Town's governmental fungsto provide informatiao on near terminflows, outflows, and
balances of spendaliesources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requiréments
particular, unassigned futdilance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resourcds forailab
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of June30, 20D, the Town's governmental funds reported combined endingbfalatices 0$5,213,047 a
decreaseof $9,604,944in comparison with the prior year. The unassigned fund balance,87%881or
64.76% of the total fund balance is available for spegdihthe Town's discretion. The remainder of the fund
balance is committed, restricted, assigned orgmandable to indicate that it is not available for new spending.

The General Fund is the eiioperating fund of the Town. At the end of the curresitdi year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund w&sl®5,778 As a measure of General Fund liquidity, it may be useful to
compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. ghasiind balance represer@<% of total
General Fundbudgeted expenditures.

The Town's General Fund balandecreasedy $1,232,842during the current fiscal year as a result of
revenueexceedingxpendituresincludingtransfers to the School Depadnt of $11,786,267.

Proprietary Funds

The Town's proprietary unds financial statements provide the same type of information found in the
governmerwvide financial statements, but in more detail.

The unrestricted net position of the proprietary fuadiune 30, 204 totaled ¥,406,394 with theWater Fund
making up $,589,0720f the total. The Water Fun&ewer Fundand Police Detail Fund hazhangesn net
position of 842,184 ($96,800Q, and $1,916respectively. Other factors concerning the foesof these funds
have already been addressethe discussion of the Town's businégse activities.

(Continued)
11



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

General Fund BudgetaryHighlights

The Financial Town meeting held in May Bdpproved an operating budget $81,012,649.

The general fund endetie year with revenueecorded in the amount of $3,34807in excess of the budget.

Local revenues were higher than budgeted by $849,023. The Town also had $2,254,569 more than budgeted in

intergovernmental transactions and $198 5@®re than budgeted fanterest and investmemcome.

The expenditures ended the year with an unfavorable variance of780ZThe most significant deficit
amount includes overspent public service of $1,851,641 and underspent municipal resolution of $589,000.

School Department Budgetary Highlights

The SchoolUnrestricted fundoudgetarydeficit of $1,699,637resulted in parfrom employee benefit over
budget by $1,017,857 and purchaseises of 883,954.

Capital Assetsand Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The Town®vestment in capital assets for its governmental larginesdype activities as of
June 30, 209 amouwnted to $19,820,924(net of accumulated depreciationhis investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, improvements, machin&ryequipment,nfrastructureand constructionin progress.
Thenetincreasen the Town'sinvestmentn capitalassetgorthecurrentyearwas$9,692,953

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Land $ 15328174 $ 15328174 $ 177452 $ 177452 $ 15505626 $ 15,505,626
Construction in progress 10,520,942 169,263 - 2,541,870 10,520,942 2,711,133
Infrastructure, net 15,603,692 14,921,522 30,860,802 28,382,187 46,464,494 43,303,709
Building & improvements, net 42,715,440 43,965,106 467,116 498,715 43,182,556 44,463,821
Machinery and equipment, net 842,932 1,004,763 1,208,607 1,177,359 2,051,539 2,182,122
Vehicles, net 1,856,233 1,786,289 239,534 175,271 2,095,767 1,961,560
Total $ 86,867,413 $ 77,175117 $ 32953511 $ 32,952,854 $ 119,820,924 $ 110,127,971

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be fauMNbte6 to thebasic financial statements.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Capital Assetsand Debt Administration (Continued)

Long-term debt: At the end of the fiscal year, the Town had total bonded detstanding of$25,388,650
General obligation bonds almcked bythe full faith and credit othe Town,including the Town's power to
levy additionaltaxesto ensurerepaymentof the debt. The Town issued a two years bond anticipation
note of $25,000,000 on September 25, 2018 with maturity date 09/15/202@8eneralobligation
debt currently outstanding was approved by a voteettizens

The Town has an Aa2 rating from Moody's Investors Service and an AA rating fromliriestorsService.

State statute limits the amount of bonds a governmental entity can issue to 3% ofaissegaédaluation. The
currentdebtlimitation for the Town is $88,959,529

Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Bonds and notes $20,220,000 $22,595,000 $5,168,650 $5,504,650 $25,388,650 $ 28,099,650
Bond premium 2,425,332 1,751,903 - - 2,425,332 1,751,903
Capttal lease - 123,105 - - - 123,105
BAN 25,000,000 - - - 25,000,000 -
Total $47,645,332 $24,470,008 $5,168,650 $5,504,650 $52,813,982 $ 29,974,658

Additional information on the Tan's longterm debt can bund in Note7 to thebasic financial statements.
Economic Factorsand Next Year'sBudgets andRates

The latest published unemployment rate as of Decembe¥ 201the Town is2.9 percent. This copares
favorably to the State's average unemployment ratebqfedcent and the national rate o percent. Per capita
and median family incomes remain some of the highest in the State.

At the Annual Town Financial Meeting in May Z0)1the voters appred a budget for fiscal year 20 of
$85,418,445 This budget i$.4 % higher than the fiscal year 2budget. The Town's municipal departments
increase wagl.4%; the School Department increase wla®% and Debt Service and the Resolnsidunded
throughcapital reserve funds nigicreasevas?24.1%.

Requests forlinformation

This financial reportis designedto provide a generaloverview of the Town'sfinancesfor all thosewith
aninterestin the Town'sfinances. Questionsoncerninganyinformationprovidedin thisreportor requests
for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance DirectoQld®iver Road,
Lincoln,Rhoddsland02865.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,368,558 $ 6,093,629 24,462,187

Investments 15,521,767 - 15,521,767
Receivables, net

Personal property taxes 2,968,063 - 2,968,063

User charges - 971,196 971,196

Intergovernmental 1,258,616 - 1,258,616

Departmental and other 2,554,540 - 2,554,540

Internal Balances (457,094) 457,093 (D)

Intra entity payable 97,476 97,476

Other assets 492,602 387,679 880,281

Net pension asset 4,204,930 - 4,204,930
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable assets 25,849,116 177,452 26,026,568

Depreciable assets, net 61,018,297 32,776,059 93,794,356

Total capital assets 86,867,413 32,953,511 119,820,924
Total assets 131,876,871 40,863,108 172,739,979
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related outflows 11,604,290 16,057 11,620,347
OPEB related outflows 2,451,822 - 2,451,822
Loss on debt refunding 973,355 - 973,355
Total assets and deferred outflows of resource® 146,906,338 $40,879,165 187,785,503

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $ 7,762,597 $ 291,451 $ 8,054,048

Accrued interest 358,300 58,525 416,825

Incurred but not reported claims 454,139 - 454,139

Current portion of bonds and loans payable 2,930,826 349,000 3,279,826

Current portion of compensated absences 172,519 - 172,519
Portion due or payable in more than one year:

Bonds and loans payable 19,714,506 4,819,650 24,534,156

BAN Payable 25,000,000 - 25,000,000

Compensated absences 4,140,463 - 4,140,463

Other post-employment benefit liability 13,602,574 - 13,602,574

Net pension liability 62,059,109 216,781 62,275,890
Total liabilities 136,195,033 5,735,407 141,930,440
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related inflows 6,806,109 10,136 6,816,245

OPEB related inflows 2,356,426 - 2,356,426

Other deferred revenue - 7,590 7,590
Total deferred inflows of resources 9,162,535 17,726 9,180,261
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 64,837,136 27,719,638 92,556,774

Restricted 423,740 - 423,740

Unrestricted (63,712,106) 7,406,394 (56,305,712
Total liabilities, deferred inflows or resources
and net position $ 146,906,338 $ 40,879,165 $ 187,785,503

The accompanying notes aan integral part of these statente
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Gove rmment

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental Activities

General government $ 498,738 $ 292,965 $ - $ - $ (205,773) $ - $ (205,773

Financial administration 1,340,809 - - - (1,340,809) - (1,340,809

Public library 1,941,382 9,936 - - (1,931,446) - (1,931,446

Public safety 10,618,070 - 157,597 - (10,460,473) - (10,460,473

Public services 12,109,689 2,743,347 148,212 - (9,218,130) - (9,218,130

Education 60,503,913 - 2,634,737 209,189 (57,659,987) - (57,659,987

State contribution to teachers pension plan 2,643,958 - 2,643,958 - - - -

Interest on debt 473,621 - - - (473,621) - (473,621,
Total governmental activities 90,130,180 3,046,248 5,584,504 209,189 (81,290,239) - (81,290,239
Business-Type Activities

Water fund 3,589,715 3,277,325 1,026,100 - - 713,710 713,710

Sewer fund 1,142,494 1,013,939 12,116 - - (116,439) (116,439

Police detail fund 950,044 1,019,461 - - - 69,417 69,417
Total business-type activities 5,682,253 5,310,725 1,038,216 - - 666,688 666,688
Total Town of Lincoln $ 95812433 $ 8356973 $ 6,622,720 $ 209,189 $ (81,290,239) $ 666,688 $ (80,623,551

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Total Town of Lincoln $ (81,290,239) $ 666,688 $ (80,623,551

General revenues

Real estate and personal property, net of reserve for abatements 55,888,421 - 55,888,421
Meals and hotel tax 919,712 - 919,712
Video lottery 6,243,096 - 6,243,096
Table game commissions 1,178,123 - 1,178,123
Public service corporation tax 271,180 - 271,180
School housing aid 921,114 - 921,114
Interest received 910,389 128,474 1,038,863
State aid to education 12,323,166 - 12,323,166
Motor vehicle phase out 910,043 - 910,043
Library aid 202,908 - 202,908
Airport aid 25,000 - 25,000
Medicaid 710,559 - 710,559
Miscellaneous 228,331 19,639 247,970
Total general revenues 80,732,042 148,113 80,880,155
Special items and transfers
Transfers between funds 27,501 (27,501) -
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 80,759,543 120,612 80,880,155
Changes in net position (530,696) 787,300 256,604
Net position - July 1, 2018, restated 2,079,466 34,338,732 36,418,198
Net position - June 30, 2019 $ 1,548,770 $ 35,126,032 36,674,802

The accompaying notes are an integral part of these statements
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Property taxes, net
Intergovernmental
Other
Due from other funds
Prepaid items

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred outflows

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources$22,383,670

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

BAN payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred property taxes
Other deferred revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,

and fund balance

Major Fund Non-Major Total
General School Governmental Governmental

Fund Unrestricted Funds Funds
$10,104,092 $ 911412 $ 7,353,054 $ 18,368,558
6,144,493 - 9,377,274 15,521,767
2,968,063 - - 2,968,063
160,957 39,664 1,057,995 1,258,616
2,050,342 504,198 - 2,554,540
468,371 3,472,871 9,503,472 13,444,714
487,352 - 5,250 492,602
22,383,670 4,928,145 27,297,045 54,608,860
$4,928,145 $ 27,297,045 $ 54,608,860
1,998,052 5,133,545 631,001 7,762,598
- - 25,000,000 25,000,000
10,249,385 112,818 3,442,128 13,804,331
12,247,437 5,246,363 29,073,129 46,566,929
2,602,706 - - 2,602,706
220,692 - 5,486 226,178
2,823,398 - 5,486 2,828,884
487,352 - 5,250 492,602
- - 423,740 423,740
219,705 - 201,119 420,824
500,000 - - 500,000
6,105,778 (318,218) (2,411,679) 3,375,881
7,312,835 (318,218) (1,781,570) 5,213,047
$22,383,670 $4,928,145 $ 27,297,045 $ 54,608,860

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Total governmental fund balances $ 5,213,047

Assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Capital assets, net 86,867,413
TSB net pension asset 4,204,930

Other long-term revenues are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred inflows of resources in the funds. 2,828,884

Other long-term assets related to net pension and OPEB activity and therefore,
are deferred inflows of resources in the funds. (9,162,535

Other long-term liabilities related to net pension and OPEB activity and therefore,
are deferred outflows of resources in the funds. 14,056,112

Long term liabilities relating to bond refunding amortized over
the life of the bond 973,355

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due. (358,300)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

Bonds and notes payable (22,645,332
Compensated absences (4,312,982
Other postemployment benefits (13,602,574
Town net pension liability (14,217,768
ERS net pension liability (45,182,730
MERS net pension liability (2,658,611
Other commitments (454,139)
Net position of governmental activities $ 1,548,770

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

19



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chandgamd Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Major Fund Non-Major Total
General School Governmental Governmental
Fund Unrestricted Funds Funds
Revenues
General property taxes and interest $55,655,076 $ - - $ 55,655,076
Other local and departmental revenue 3,046,248 - - 3,046,248
Intergovernmental 10,734,243 12,323,166 2,782,949 25,840,358
Interest received 582,528 2,481 325,380 910,389
State contribution to pension plan - 2,556,945 - 2,556,945
Medicaid - 710,559 - 710,559
Other revenue - 163,296 368,754 532,050
Total revenue 70,018,095 15,756,447 3,477,083 89,251,625
Expenditures
General government 929,776 - 7,938 937,714
Financial administration 984,274 - - 984,274
Public library 1,209,575 - - 1,209,575
Public safety 6,997,209 - 211,674 7,208,883
Public services 7,375,918 - 3,234,436 10,610,354
Grants and contributions 62,500 - - 62,500
Other expenditures 5,357,306 - - 5,357,306
Education - 56,685,406 11,168,727 67,854,133
State contribution to pension plan - 2,556,945 - 2,556,945
Capital outlay - - - -
Debt service
Principal 2,145,000 - - 2,145,000
Interest 875,136 - - 875,136
Total expenditures 25,936,694 59,242,351 14,622,775 99,801,820
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 44,081,401 (43,485,904) (11,145,692) (10,550,195
Other financing sources (uses)
Bond Proceeds 3,620,000 - - 3,620,000
Bond issuance premium 342,847 - - 342,847
BAN issuance premium - - 917,750 917,750
Payment to escrow agent (3,962,847) - - (3,962,847,
Transfers in 27,501 41,786,267 3,555,477 45,369,245
Transfers out (45,341,744) - - (45,341,744
Other financing sources (uses) (45,314,243) 41,786,267 4,473,227 945,251
Excess of revenue and other sources over
expenditures and other uses (1,232,842) (1,699,637) (6,672,465) (9,604,944
Fund balance, July 1, 2018 restated 8,545,677 1,381,419 4,890,895 14,817,991

Fund balance, June 30, 2019 $ 7,312,835 $ (318,218)

$ (1,781,570)

$ 5,213,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the
Statement of Activities

For theYear Ended June 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (9,604,944

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays including dispositions exceeded depreciation in the current period. 9,692,296

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents
the net change in deferred inflows of resources. 233,345

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items. 1,824,676

Bond refunding of long term debt are amortized over the course of the payable
but are not reported as an expenditure on governmental fund statements (10,083)

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest, is not reported until due. 34,415

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated absences,
do not require the current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds. 105,915

The other postemployment benefit expense reported in the Statement of Activities
requires the use of current financial resources and is not reported as an
expenditure in the governmental funds 598,855

The deferred salary and other commitments expense reported in the Statement
of Activities requires the use of current financial resources and is not reported
as an expenditure in the governmental funds (316,901)

The net pension liability expense reported in the Statement of Activities
requires the use of current financial resources and is not reported as an
expenditure in the governmental funds (3,088,270

Change in net position of governmental activities $ (530,696)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Police Detail

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Due from other funds
Receivables, net:
User fees, net
Inventory
Other assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension related outflows

Total assets and deferred outflows of
resources

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of bonds & notes payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Bonds and loans payable
Net pension liability

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Pension related inflows
Unearned revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Water Fund Sewer Fund Fund Total
$ 2,801,919 $ - $ - $ 2,801,919
3,291,710 - - 3,291,710
231,116 195,974 30,003 457,093
667,105 103,689 200,402 971,196
88,460 - - 88,460
4,080 295,139 - 299,219
7,084,390 594,802 230,405 7,909,597
177,452 - - 177,452
20,917,639 11,755,540 102,880 32,776,059
21,095,091 11,755,540 102,880 32,953,511
28,179,481 12,350,342 333,285 40,863,108
16,057 - - 16,057
28,195,538 12,350,342 333,285 40,879,165
276,868 14,583 - 291,451
23,882 34,643 - 58,525
186,000 163,000 - 349,000
486,750 212,226 - 698,976
2,074,150 2,745,500 - 4,819,650
216,781 - - 216,781
2,290,931 2,745,500 - 5,036,431
2,777,681 2,957,726 - 5,735,407
10,136 - - 10,136
7,590 - - 7,590
17,726 - - 17,726
18,811,059 8,805,699 102,880 27,719,638
6,589,072 586,917 230,405 7,406,394

Total net position

$25,400,131

$ 9,392,616

$ 333,285

$35,126,032

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

22



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Proprietary Funds
Statement oRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Police Detail
Water Fund Sewer Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
User fees and charges $ 3,277,325 $ 1,013939 $ 1,019,461 $ 5,310,725
Other revenues 1,026,100 12,116 - 1,038,216
Interest and penalties - 19,639 - 19,639
Total operating revenues 4,303,425 1,045,694 1,019,461 6,368,580
Operating expenses
Administrative 900,370 42,603 891,531 1,834,504
Maintenance and servicing 2,186,032 385,413 - 2,571,445
Operating supplies - 200,660 - 200,660
Depreciation and amortization 447,438 397,636 58,513 903,587
Total operating expenses 3,533,840 1,026,312 950,044 5,510,196
Operating income (loss) 769,585 19,382 69,417 858,384
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income 128,474 - - 128,474
Investment expense (55,875) (116,182) - (172,057)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 72,599 (116,182) - (43,583)
Income (loss) before transfers 842,184 (96,800) 69,417 814,801
Transfers
Transfers out - operating - - (27,501) (27,501)
Total Transfers - - (27,501) (27,501)
Change in net position 842,184 (96,800) 41,916 787,300
Net position, July 1, 2018 24,557,947 9,489,416 291,369 34,338,732
Net position, June 30, 2019 $25,400,131 $ 9,392,616 $ 333,285 $35,126,032

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Police Detalil
Water Fund ~ Sewer Fund Fund Total

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 4317575 $ 750556 $ 944932 $ 6,013,063
Cash received from (to) other funds 10,765 272,541 39,055 322,361
Payments to suppliers and employees (3,324,262) (680,683) (891,531) (4,896,476

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,004,078 342,414 92,456 1,438,948
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in (out) (27,501) (27,501)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities (27,501) (27,501)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (465,868) (358,485) (64,955) (889,308)
Principal paid on capital debt (178,000) (158,000) - (336,000)
Interest paid on capital debt (57,694) (111,782) (169,476)

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (701,562) (628,267) (64,955) (1,394,784
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends 128,474 128,474

Net cash used by investing activities 128,474 128,474
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 430,990 (285,853) 145,137
Balances-beginning of the year 5,662,639 285,853 5,948,492
Balances-end of the year $ 6,093,629 $ $ $ 6,093,629
Displayed as:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,093,629 $ $ $ 6,093,629

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral pdrthese statements
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in user charges receivables, net

(Increase) decrease in other receivables

(Increase) decrease in other assets

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds

Increase (decrease) accounts payable and

accrued expenses

Increase (decrease) in net pension liability

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Police Detail

Water Fund Sewer Fund Fund Total
$ 769585 $ 19382 $ 69,417 $ 858,384
447 438 382,699 58,513 888,650
18,498 22,895 (74,529) (33,136)
1,424 (295,139) (293,715)
(15,065) - (15,065)
10,765 272,541 39,055 322,361
(222,852) (37,070) (259,922)
(1,364) - (1,364)
(4,351) (22,894) (27,245)
$ 1,004,078 $ 342,414 $ 92,456 $ 1,438,948

The accompanying noteseaan integral part of these statements
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Employee Benefit

Private Purpose

Trust Funds Trust Funds  Agency Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 34,009 $ 577,201
Investments 33,326,617 - -
Accounts receivable - 374,411
Total assets 33,326,617 34,009 951,612
Deferred outflows of resources
None - -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 33,326,617 34,009 951,612
Liabilities
Accounts payable - 25,969
Due to other funds - 97,476
Deposits held - 828,167
Total liabilities - 951,612
Deferred inflows of resources
None - -
Net Position
Restricted for pension trust 27,252,464 -
Restricted for OPEB trust 6,074,153 - -
Restricted for private purposes - 34,009 -
Total net position 33,326,617 34,009 -
Total liabilities and net position $ 33326617 $ 34009 $ 951,612

The accompanying noteseaan integral part of these statements
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Employee Benefit Private Purpose

Trust Funds Trust Funds
Additions
Employer contributions $ 3,727,847 $ -
Plan member contributions 333,249 -
Investment income (net of related fees) 2,331,586 71
Total additions 6,392,682 71
Deductions
Benefits paid 2,963,817 -
Administrative expenses 14,222 -
Total deductions 2,978,039 -
Changes in fund equity held in trust
for individuals, organizations, and
other governments 3,414,643 71
Net position, July 1, 2018 29,911,974 33,938
Net position, June 30, 2019 $ 33,326,617 $ 34,009

The accompanying noteseaan integral part of these statements
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The basic ihancial statements of the Town bihcoln, Rhode Island (the Town) have been prepared
conformity with accountingprinciplesgenerally acceptedin the United Statesof America applicable
togovernmentalentities. In certain instances,summariesof the Town's significant accountingpolicies
havebeen presented throughout the notes to the financial statements in conjunction with other disclosures
to which theyrelate.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Town vas founded ir1871.The Town is governed largely under tt858Home Rule Charterwhich
provides for a CouncitAdministrator form of government. The Town provides various services
includingeducation, water, libraries, public safety (police and rescue), public works, (engineering,
highwayrecycling sewer public buildings, parks and recreatipadcialservices and genergbvernment
services

The elected Town Administrator serves as chief administrative agent over all municipal secliaiag

public safety (police and rescue), public works (highway, maintenance, and sanitation), social services,
parks and recreation, planning, zoning and inspection, and general administrative sémies.
Superintendent of Schools, appointed by $ithool Committeeservesasthe chiefadministrativeagent

for the School Department, which provides elementary and secondary education to Town rdsidents.
Superintendent of the Water Commission, appointed by the Board of Water Commissioners, sthiwes as
Chief Administrative Agent for the Water Commissioa, quasimunicipal agendylepartment ofthe

Town.

The Town complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), includingelallant
GovernmentalAccounting StandardsBoard (GASB) pronouncementsThe acounting and reporting
frameworkand the more significant accountingpolicies are discussedin subsequentsubsectionsof
this Note.

In evaluating how to define the governmentfor financial reporting purposes,managementhas
consideredll potential compnent units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity wasmadeby applyingthecriteriasetforth in GASB StatemeniNo. 61. Under GASB
StatementNo. 61, a legally separate entity is required to be included as a componénif ut is
fiscally dependent upothe primary government and there iSreancialbenefit or burden relationship
present. Theprimary government is financially accountable ifappoints the voting majority of the
organization'ggoverningboardand(1) it is ableto imposeits will onthatorganizationor (2)thereis a
potential forthe organizationto provide specific financial benefitsto, or impose specific financial
burdenson, the primary government. A potential componentunit has a financial beneift or burden
relationshipwith theprimary governmentf, for exampleanyoneofthefollowing conditionsexists:

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies(Continued)
A. Financial Reporting Entity (Continued)

a. The primary government isegally entitled to or can otherwise access tirganization's
resources.

b. The primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumedlidpion to finance the
deficits of, or provide financial support to, tbeganization.

c. The primary govemment is obligated for the debt of tlmeganization.

The Town has identified no component units through the application of GASB Stateméit No.

Accounting Pronouncements Implemented in the Current Year:

GASB Statement 88, Certain Disclosures relateDebt, including Direct Borrowing and Direct Placement

is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The objective oétdimment is to improve the
information that is disclosed in the notes to the government financial statements relaby toctuding

direct borrowings and direct placements. This statement requires that additional essential information
related to debbe disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, including unused lines of credit, assets
pledged as collateral fdhe debt, and terms specified in debt agreement related to significant events of
default with financerelated consequences, signifitsgrmination events with finanaelated consequences

and significant subjective acceleration clauses. The Town of lnn&iode Island has implemented this
standard in FY2019 and expects an impact to the financial reporting framework related spetifivale
disclosures.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements not yet Effective:

GASB Statement 84 Fiduciary Activitiesis effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The
objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities shordgobied. The Statement
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the
criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the
beneiciaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. An activity meeting the criteria should present a
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. An exception to
that requirement is provided for a busingg®e activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for
three months or less. THe®wn of Lincolnis in the process of evaluating this statement and expects an
impact to the financial reporting framework in Fiscal Year 2020.

GASB Statement No. 871,eases will be effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. This
Statement requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use leased assets. The
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a defélw@ddhresourcesThe Town of Lincolnis

in the process of evaluating this statement and expects an impact to the financial accounting and reporting
framework in Fiscal Year 2021.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Recentlylssued Accounting Pronouncements not yet Effective (Continue)

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Constru&aiod

The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparabilityradtionoabout

capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost
incurred before the end of a constiaotperiod. This statement is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2019.The Town of Lincolnis in the process of evaluating this statement @oes not
expects an impact to the financial accounting and reporting framework in Fiscal 2éar 20

GASB Statement 90Majority Equity Interestsi an amendment of GASB Statements No. ddd No. 61

is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The primary objectives of this Statement are to

i mprove the consistency and comparability of repc
separate organization anditeprove he relevance of financial statement information for certain component
units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization should be reported as an investment if a govarante s nglofaHe @quity interest meets the
definition of an investment. For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization, a government should report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the
governmenbr fund that holds the equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest
using the equity method. This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has 100
percent equity interest account ftg assetsjeferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows

of resources at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the
component units. Th&own of Lincolnhas evaluated this standard andsdnet expet an impact to the
financial reporting framework.

GASB Statement 91, Conduit Debt Obligationsis effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2020. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single methodiofre

conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments
extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations and (3) related note
disclosures. This Statement achieves thladgectivesby clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt
obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards
for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and vojuatenmitrrents extended by

issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.
A conduit debt obligation is defined as a debt instrument haafingf the following characteristics: (a)

There are deast thre parties involves: (1) an issuer, (2) a thpatty obligor and (3) a debt holder or a debt
trustee; (b) The issuer and the third party obligor are not within the same financial reporting entity; (c) The
debt obligation is not a parity bond dfetissuernot is it crosscollateralized with other debt of the issuer;

(d) The third party obligor or its agent, not the issuer, ultimately receives the proceeds from the debt
issuances; and (5) The third party obligor, not the issuer, is primarilyatddigor he payment of all
amounts associated with the debt obligation (debt service payments.) This Statement also addresses
arrangementsften characterized as leagbat are associated with conduit debt obligations. Tidwen of

Lincolnis in the praess of ealuating this Statement and will complete their evaluation prior to the required
implementation date of Fiscal Year 2022.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
B. Basic Financial Statements GovernmentWide Statements

The statementof net position and statementof activities display information about the Town as a

whole. They include all funds ohé Townexceptfor fiduciary funds. The statemendiéstinguishbetween
governmental and businesge activities.Governmerdl activities generally arBnancedthrough taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other-agohange revenuesBusinesgype activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

The statement of activigs presents a comparison between expenses and program revezashfonction
of the Town's governmentalactivities. Programrevenuesinclude a) fees, fines and chargepaid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and b) grants and contributionsthat are
restrictedto meetingthe operationalor capital requirement®f a particular programRevenuesthat are
not classified as programrevenues,jncluding all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

C. Basic Financial Statement$ Fund Financial Statements

Fundfinancial statementsf the Town are organizedinto funds, eachof which is consideredo be
a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separateeffdtalbncing
accounts which constitute itssets, deferredoutflows of resourcesliabilities, deferred inflow of
resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. Funds are orgemiztddee major categories:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Amphasis is placean major funds, eachdisplayedin a
separateolumn. A fund is consideredmajor if it is the primaryoperatingfund of the Town or meets
thefollowing criteria:

a. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred irdfawsources,
revenues, or expendres/expenses of that individual governmerttaénterprisefund are at
least 10 percentof the correspondingotal for all funds of thatcategory or typeand

b. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred irdfawsouces,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmentalofueiterprise fund
are at least 5 percent of tleerresponding total for all governmentahd enterprisefunds
combined.

All remaininggovernmentahndenterprisdundsareaggregatedandreportedasnon-majorfunds.
Fundtypesusedby the Town andadescriptionof thefundscomprisingeachareasfollows:
Governmental BEnds

Governmental funds are used to account for operations that supply basic govesemaas.The Town
useshefollowing governmentafunds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is always
classified as a major fund. It is used to account for all activities except those legally or
administrativelyrequiredto beaccauntedfor in otherfunds.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
C. Basic FinancialStatement$ Fund Financial StatementgContinued)

SpecialRevenueFunds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds ofcspecifi
revenue sourcethat are legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for specific purposes
otherthandebt service or capital projects.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for and report resources
restricted,committed,or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
constructionof capital facilities and other capital assets.

Proprietary Funds:

Proprietary funds are used to account for busHikesactivities provided to the geralpublic (enterprise
funds) or within the government (internal servicads). These activitieare financed primarily by user
charges and the measurement of financial activity focusesmeairincome measurement similar to the
private sector. The Towroasiders all enterprise funde be major funds for financial statement poses
even though they may not qualify unddre GASB guidelines.The Town's proprietary funds consist of
the Water Fund, SeweirFund,andthePoliceDetail Fund. TheTownhasnointernal servicéunds.

Fiduciary Funds fot includedin governmentwidefinancial statements):

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held by the Town in a trustee or agency capatityedork,
cannot be used to support the Town's own programsfollbeving fiduciary fundsare usedy theTown:

Penson Trusts Fund - Pension trust funds account for contributions made by the Town and its
participatingemployeeso provideretiremenbenefitdo theparticipatingemployees.

OPEB Trust Fund - OPEBtrustfundis usedto accountfor fundsto be usedto providepostretirement
benefits.

Private PurposeTrust Fund - The Town's private purpose trust accounts for resources legally held in
trust for use byan outside committee to provide awaasslscholarsips in accordance with @donor's
instructions All resource®f thefund, including any earningsoninvestmentsmay be used.Thereis no
requirementhatanyportionof theseresourcedepreservedascapital.

AgencyFunds- Agency funds are establishadhen the Town holds assetsaastody for others iran
agencycapacity.

D. Measurement BcusandBasisof Accounting

The governmentvide financial statements areeported using the economiesourcesneasurementocus
and the accrualbasis of accounting, as arethe proprietary fund and fiduciaryfund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recordedialbikty as incurred, regardlessof
thetiming of related cashflows. Propertytaxesarerecognizedasrevenuein the year for which they are
levied. Grantsand similar items arerecognizedas revene & soon as all eligibilityequirements imposed
by the provider have beemet.

(Continued)
32



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
D. Measurement-ocus andBasisof Accounting Continued):

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current finamsialirces
measurementocus andthe modified accruabasisof accounting.Revenuesrerecognizedwhenthey
are susceptible to accru&usceptibity occurs when revenues are both measurabtavailable for
liquidating liabilities of the current periodMeasurable'means the amount d¢he transactioncanbe
determinecand” a v a i | a bdolkediblemviéhim thescurrentperiodor soonenoughthereafterto be
usedto pay liabilities of the currentperiod (sixty days).Revenuesot considered to be available are
recorded as unavailable revenues (deferred inflowsesfources)Expenditures,including capital
outlays,arerecognizedwhenal liability hasbeenincurred,exceptfor thoseinvolving debtserviceand
otherlong-termobligationghatarerecognizedvhenpaid.

Those revenues susceptibléo accrual are property taxes, special assessmentsjntergovernmental
revenues,interest and chargesfor services. Fines, licensesand permit revenuesare not susceptibléo

accrual becausgenerallythey are not measurableuntil receivedin cashandthus are recognizedvhen

received. Rescue service fees receivable,net of an allowance for doubtful accounts,arereported as
deferred inflows of resources and considered unavailable frtdestatements.

Recognition of grant revenues is based on the susceptibility of accrual as determitneddgal and
contractualrequirementsestablishedby each grantor. For grants not restrictive as to specificpurposes
and revocableonly for failure to comply with generalprescribedrequirements revenuesre recognized
when received. Where expenditure is the prime factor in determining eligibility, grant revenue is
recogrized asallowableexpendituresaremadeprovided,they arecollectedduringhe year or estimatedto

be colleded in the following fiscal yeamrior to expenditure proceedseceived inadvance are recorded as
unearnedevenues.

Amounts reported as pgeam revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicamfsdds services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grahtentributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues trethgrogram revenues Likewise, general
revenuesncludeall taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses frompeating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and produdidgliveiing goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principalgoing operationsThe principal operating revenues of the
enterprisgundsconsist of charges to customers for sadeslservices. Operating expenses of the enterprise
fundsinclude the cost ofales andservicesadministrative expenses addpreciation of capital assets. All
revenues and expenses maetingthis definition arereportedasnonoperatingrevenuesandexpenses.

Whenboth restrictecandunrestrictedresourcesreavailable foruse, it isthe Town'spolicy to userestricted
resourcesirst, andthenunrestrictedesourcesistheyareneeded.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net PositioEquity
Use of estimates:

The preparation of basic financiastatements in conformity with accountingrinciples generally
acceptedn the United Statesof Americarequiresmanagemento make estimatesandassumptionghat
affect the reportedamouns of assetsdeferredoutflows of resourcediabilities, and deferredinflows

of resourcesand disclosure of contingent assetsand liabilities at the date of the basic financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amofurgiéenues, expendites, and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual result®uld differfrom thoseestimates.

Property taxes:

Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year they are levied and become deaitshie levied

on July 1 on (a) one hundred pent of the full and fair value of real amangiblepersonal property owned
within the Town the previous Rember 31; and, (b) the valuasdeterminedoy the RhodelslandVehicle
Valuation Commission of vehiclesregisteredwithin the Town the previousalendar year, prorated for the
actual number of days so register&dxeslevied onJuly 1 arepayableJuly 31or maybepaid quarterlyon

July 31,0ctober31, January31,and April 30. Failure to make payments by March 10 will result in a lien on
the taxpayer'sproperty.

Intergovernmentakevenues:

State aid and othéntergovernmental revenue is recognized in the year in which the &wedppropriated
by theRhodelslandGeneralAssembly provided theyarecollectedduringthefiscal year.

Cash and ash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cashaml, time and demand deposits amdrtterm investments
maturingwithin threemonthsfromthedateof acquisition.

UnderRhodelsland generallaws, depositoryinstitutionsmustinsuredeposis of municipalitiesor pledge
eligible collateral equal t@00%of deposits maturing in greater than 60 daysy institution not meeting
certain federally prescribed minimum capital standards mastedeposits or provide collateral regardless
of dateof maturity. The Town amplied with theserequirementsThe Town doesnothaveadepositpolicy

for custodialcreditrisk or otherrisks.

Investments:

Investments are reported at fair value, based on quotations from applicable national securities
exchangs. Unrealizedjains and losses from changes in fair value are recognizedestmenincome.

The Town doesnhot have aninvestmentpolicy for custodialcreditrisk or otherrisks other thanthose

relatingto its pensiortrustfund. The Town'sinvestmentommissionsresponsibldor the supervision of
the investment of the Town's Pension Trust Fund investmentshvibbjectiveof preservingcapital

andinvestingwith careto minimizetherisk of largelosses.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity
(Continued)

Inter-fundtransactions:

Transactions between funds have been eliminated igakiernmentwide financial statementdut fully
presented within the governmental fund financial statements wigdiminationmadebetweenor within
funds. Reimbursementsare accountedfor as expendituresin the reimbursingund and reductions to
expenditures in the reimbursed fund. All other iffterd transactions irthe governmental fund financial
statements are operating transfers on the operating statemimetiintisinvolved.

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/boifngwarrangementsutstandingat the end of
the fiscal yar is referred to as eith&duefrom/to other funds" (current portioy "advancesrom/to other
funds" (noncurrentportion). All other outstandingbalancesdbetweerfunds are reportedas "due from/to
other funds."Any residual balancesoutstanding betwee thegovernmentalactivities and businessype
activities arereportedin the governmeniwide financiaktatements asnternalbalances.

Capitalassets:

In the governmentvide financial statements athpitalassets are valued at historical costegimated
historical costif actual is unavailable, except for donated capital assets, vanétecordedattheir
estimatedair valueatthedateof donation.

Capital assetsare defined by the Town as assetswith aninitial, individual cost of $5,0000r more and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Major outlays for capital assltaprovements are capitalized
as projects areonstructed. Interest incurred during the construgtitaseof capital assetf businesgype
activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assetsconstructed.The costs of normal
maintenanceand repairghat do not addto the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is ndgub as an allocated expense in the statement of
activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net positiepreciation is
provided over the assetsd -elisdnietima ofalepreciation.f Thhénged i v e s
of estimated useful lives by of asset are as follows:

Years
Land improvements 20
Building improvements 20-60
Furniture and equipment 2-30
Motor vehicles 5-10
Water mains, valves, tanks, hydrants and services10-100

20-60

Capital assets acquired by governmental funds may be accounted#pitaboutlayexpenditires.

(Continued)
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflowd ®esources and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Bond issuanceosts:
Bond issuance costs are expensbenincurred
Compensatedbsences:

The liability for compensated absences reported in the goverrwidmtfinancial statementsonsists of
unpaid accumulated annual vacation and sick leave balancediabiliy has beencalculatedusing the
vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employeeswho currentlyare eligible to receive
termination payments and other employees who are expecteectoneeligible in the future to receive
such payments upon terminatiare included.

In the governmental fund financial statementested oraccumulated vacation arglck leavethat is
expected to be liquidated with expendable available finanegduces is reportedis expenditures and a
fund liability of thegovernmental fundhat will pay it.

Longterm obligations:

In the governmentvide and enterprise fund financial statements, {@mmn debt and othdong- term
obligations (inaiding compensateabsences and accrued claims aryments)arereportedasliabilities

in the statemenbf netposition. Bond premiumsand discountsare deferreénd amortized over the term of
the related debt using the effectiméerest method.

In the governmental fud financial statements, losigrm debt is recognized as a liability @afjovernmental
fund when due. For other longterm obligations, only that portion expectedto befinanced from
expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund lialfiliy gpvernmental fund. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources while discanemeported as other financingses.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources:

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report atesegemtson for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resourcesgxpense/expenditure) until then. The Town reports deferred charge on refunding and deferred
outflows related to pensions in this egbry. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in

the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacqaisitirice. This amount is deferred and amortized over

the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

Continued
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Pasitr Equity
(Continued)

Deferrad outflows/inflows of resourcésontinued):

The deferred outflows applicable to pensions related to contributions made by the Town after the
measurement date, the net difference between projected and actual earnings damvgdtments and
changes in actuarial assumptions. The defeotgflows related to contributions will be recognized in the
following year while the deferred outflows related to projected and actual earnings will be amortized over
the average remainingwvice life of all plan members.

In addition to liabilities, thestatement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(d)ssmwill not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The Town reports advance collections and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions in this categorjheTdeferred inflows of resources related to pensions is theeditie
between projected and actuedrnings on pension plan investment and changes in actuarial assumptions.
These deferred inflows will be amortized over the average remaining serviadsalifelan members.
Encumbrances

Encumbranceaccounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for fund
expenditures and/or expense are recorded in order to reserve portions of applicable appropriations, is
employed in the govemental and businedgpe funds.

Fund equity:

Governmemwideandenterprisefundfinancial statements:

Netposition:

The Town's net position has been segregated into the following three components:

Net investment in capital assetsepresents the heook value of all capital assets less déstanding
balances of bonds and other debt used to acquire, construct or improve these assets.

Restricted- those that have been limited to uses specified either externally by creditors, contributors,
laws orregulations of other governments or intelp@ly enabling legislation or law.

Unrestricted a residual category for the balance of net position.

Continued
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outiws/Inflows of Resources and N&osition or Equity
(Continued)

Fund Equity(Continued):
The Town's fund balance is reported in the followgagegories

Nonspendablgund balance- amounts that cannot be spent because they are either &) not
spendaleformor b) legallyor contractuallyequiredto bemaintainedntact.

Restrictedund balance amountghathavebeerrestrictedto specificpurposesitherby creditors,
grantors,contributors,or laws or regulationsof othergovernmentspr imposel by law through
constitutionaprovisionsorenablindegislation.

Committed fund balance- amountsconstrainedo specificpurposedy the Town, usingits
highestlevelofdecisionmakingauthority.

Assigned fund balaneeamountgonstrainetbspecifc purposemternally by the Town

Commitments will only be used for specific purposes pursuant to a formal action of the - Town Council.
Town Council Resolution is required to approve, modify, or rescind a funddeatsommitment. Afune

30, 208, comnitted fund balance of the General Fund consisted of encumbréoteding £19,705
Assignedfund balance amounts that are intended by the Town to be used for sppuifimses buare
neitherrestricted nor committed. The intent should be exga@dy (a)the governing body itself or (b) a
body (a budget or finance conttee) or official to which the governing body has delegatedthbority

to assign amounts to be used for specific purposesJuA¢ 30, 209, assigned fund balance of the
GereralFund consisted of a health care reserve of $500,000.

The Town Council delegates to the Town Administrator or designee the authority to assign amounts to be
used for specific purposes. Such assignments cannot exceed the avaijteldable, unrestricted,
uncommitted) fund balance in any particular fulhbhassignedund balance amounts available for any
purpose.

Expenditures may be incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned,
or unassigad) amounts are availabl€omposition of the ending fund balance will be determined by
applying the following: In those instances, where both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available,
restricted amounts will be considered to have been spenafirstlowed and in compliae with stated and
specified terms or requirements), followed by committed amounts, followed by assigned amounts, and then
unassigned amounts.

Other postemployment benefits:

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outfeowsnflows of resources related to
OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fi
to/ deductions from Towaveddesen deierchined ioma they sanmeebasis psotisey aré o n
reported by the TownFor this purpose, the Town recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Continued
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outws/Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity
(Continued)

Pensions

Employees; Retirement System IP{&ERS)

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to penssprand pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Empl oyeesd RetiremertheSygdtdé mi mlnan t OERI®)uand ons fr
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by ERS fanptise, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable inraecaiitia the

benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS)

For purposes of gasuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position

of the Municipal Empl oy ees 06 eRskhidiandeadddions to/degustibone m ( M
from MERS®6 fiduciary net position haweeepotiecd &yn det ¢
MERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized

when due and payabile accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Teachers' Survivors Benefit Plan (TSB)

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensiprand pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Teachersd Sur vi vor sheBddiiond to/dedugtibna fnom (TSBSi8ukiaryanet gosition
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TSB. pumptse, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in aecorttatice

benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Town Private Plan

For purposes of measuring the net pension lighitieferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, infornastbait the fiduciary net position of the
Townds Pr (TRPaand thepdditioms to/deductions from TPiRIuciary net position havéeen
determined on the same basis as they are reported®ByFbr this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds ofemployee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair galu
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Note2. Fund Deficits

The following individual funds hadnassigned fundeficits as oflune 30, 20%:

Town Special Revenue

DCF Grant $ 8,700
BYRNE JAG 350
Operation Riptide 2,592
Senior Center Programs 713

Total Fund Deficit $ 12,355

School Special Revenue

Pilot Mini Grant $ 21
ELL Grant 4,194
Various Funds 29,065
RI Kindergarden Project 5,859

Total Fund Deficit $ 39,139

These deficits will be funded through bond proceeds, sales of property, or transfers from
otherfunds.

Note 3.Cash and cash equivalents

The Town maintainsdepositsin various financial institutions that are carried at market valueexceptfor
thoseamountswhich arecarriedaspetty cash. Thecarryingamountof depositds separatelydisplayed orthe
balancesheetsiiCashandCashEquivalents".

At June 30, 209, the carryingamount of the Town's deposi@nd cash held by fiduciary fundsas
$25,073,397while the bank balance waspproxinmetely $26,824,181 Of the bank balance approximately
$22,343,874was insuredcand / orcollateralized with securities held fpedging financialinstitution in the

Town's name.

At June 30, 209, deposits are categorized as follows:

Insured/
Collaterized in Total Bank Carrying
Town's Name Balance Amount
Depostts:

Demand deposits & savings $ 21,397,150 $ 24,909,058 $ 23,156,454
Short-term CD's 120,483 120,483 120,483
Money market 303,784 1,272,183 1,272,183
RICWFA 522,457 522,457 524,277

$ 22,343,874 $ 26,824,181 $ 25,073,397

Continued
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Note 3.Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk:

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the Town willnot be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of andrifsarty.

Note 4. Investments

Investmentof all idle funds is madethrough national banks or trust companies providing that the

financial conditions and integrity of these institution or institutions are verifiable and can be
monitored.The investmentof funds is in direct obligations of the United StatesGovernmentand

"money marketinstruments'rated "A" or better. Investmentsin any one institution cannotexceed

five (5) percentof that institutions capital and surplusas set forth in the institutions most recent
auditedfinancial statementsAll investmentaremadeaswould be doneby prudentmenof discretion
andintelligene in suchmatterswho are seekingareasonabléncomeandpreservatiorof their capital.

The Townfollows the guidance of the fair value measurement and disclosures in accordance with
GASB Statement No . 72, AFair V al uwealudvhiemrchy lise me n t
categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

Level 17 Unadusted quoted priced in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 27 Inputs other than quotedipes in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that are
observable eithatirectly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 37 Unobservable inputs for asset or liability (supported by little or no markefity). Level 3
i nputs include management 6s o \wwnmariet gadigippntsiwoudd a b o ut
use in pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions about risk).

Creditrisk is therisk thatanissuerof aninvestmentwill not fulfill its obligationto the holder of the
investment. This is measured by #@msignment of a rating by a nationatgcognizedstatistical rating
organization to debt securities. The Town's formal investment policigd®ension Trust Fund states
that no security can be purchased that is rated below Bldgdy's InvestorServices or Standard &
Poor's Ratings Group. The pension investment poltso states that no more than 10% of the
portfolio's fixed income allocation may be investiedsecurities reed below investment grade. The
pension portfolio may not invest in arsesynthetic securities or derivatives of any kind. The Town
does not have a formal polidghatlimits investmenthoicedoritsotherfunds.

Concentration of creditisk:

Concentation of credit risk is the risk dbss attributed to thenagnitude of the investment ia single
issuer. The Town's formal investmentpolicy for its PensionTrust Fund statesthat nomore than 5%
of the portfolio's value may be investedin the securitiesof any one issuerexcepfor securitiesof the
U.S. Governmentjts agencie®or instrumentalitiesThe Town does not have aformal policy that limits
the amountthat the Town may investin oneissuerfor its othe funds.
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Note4. Investments (Continued)

Custodial creditrisk:

Custodialcreditrisk for investmentds therisk that, in the evenof failure ofthe counterpartythe
Town will notbe able to recover the value @f investmentsor collateralsecuritiesthat arein the
possessionf anoutsice party. The Town doesnot believethatit hassignificantcustodialcreditrisk
with regardto its investmentsaassubstantiallyall investmentsecuritiesareregisteredandheldin the

nameof theTown.

Foreign currencyrisk:

Foreign currency risk is thrisk that changes in exchange rates adWersely affect the fairalue of an
investmentor deposit. The Town doesnot have a formal policy for foreign currency risk. There was

no foreign currency risk noted at June 30,201

The following is a degiption of the valuatioomethodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at

fair value:

Mutual funds:Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual funds held by the Town
are operended mutual funds that are registered withQeeurities and Exchange Commission.

Fixed income securitied/alued using market quotations or prices olgdifrom independent pricing
sources which may employ various pricing methods to value the investments, including matrix pricing
based on quotedipes for securities with similar coupons, ratings and maturities.

The following table summarizes the assetshe Town for which fair values are determined on a
recurring basis as of June 30, 201

Fair Value Measurement

Quoted Significant
Prices in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
June 30, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment at Fair Value 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Mutual Funds

Black Rock Equity Fund $ 12,735,737 $ 12,735,737 $ - 0% -

International Growth 1,842,921 1,842,921 - -

International Value 1,784,889 1,784,889 - -

Multi-Manager Core Fixed Income 1,348,329 1,348,329 - -

Multi-Manager Small Cap Growth 752,382 752,382 - -

Multi-Manager Small Cap Value 752,342 752,342 - -

REIT Fund 1,769,581 1,769,581 - -

Vanguard 6,074,153 6,074,153 - -

Fixed Income Securities 6,266,283 6,266,283 - -

Government Banking Investment 15,022,827 15,022,827 - -

Long-term CD's 498,940 - - 498,940

$ 48,848,384 $ 48,349,444 $ - $ 498,940

Continued
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Note 4. Investments (Cantinued)

Pension Trust Fund and OPEB Trust Fund investn

Carrying

Amount
Mutual Funds $ 20,986,181
Fixed Income 12,340,436
Total investments: $ 33,326,617

Note 5. Inter fund Transactions

Inter-fund receivables and payableslahe 30, 201@re asfollows:

Due from Due to Other Financing Other Financing
Other Funds Other Funds Sources Uses

Maijor Gove rnmental Funds
General fund $ 468,371 $ 10,249,385 $ 27501 $ 45,341,744
School unrestricted fund 3,472,871 112,818 41,786,267 -
Non-Major Gove rnme ntal Funds
Town special revenue 390,910 12,355 - -
School special revenue 685,685 864,292 - -
Capital projects 8,426,877 2,565,481 3,555,477 -
Proprietary Funds
Water fund 231,116 - - -
Sewer fund 195,974 - - -
Police detail fund 30,003 - - 27,501
Fiduciary Funds
Agency fund - 97,476 - -
Totals $ 13,901,807 $ 13,901,807 $ 45,369,245 $ 45,369,245

The principal purpose of interfund transfers is to provide a financing source to varioustfiadsay not
have the ability to cover all operating costs or capital expenditures with revenue generated by the fund.

Continued
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Note 6. Capital Assets

Capital aset activityfor the year endedune 30, 209 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Govermnmmental Activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 15,328,174 $ - % - 15,328,174
Construction in progress 169,263 10,351,679 - 10,520,942
Total capital assets not being depreciated: 15,497,437 10,351,679 - 25,849,116
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements and infrastructure 23,543,777 1,610,967 - 25,154,744
Buildings & improvements 65,030,652 327,659 - 65,358,311
Machinery & equipment 5,106,581 30,116 - 5,136,697
Motor Vehicles 4,540,312 251,753 44,000 4,748,065
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 98,221,322 2,220,495 44,000 100,397,817
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements and infrastructure 8,622,255 928,797 - 9,551,052
Buildings & improvements 21,065,546 1,577,325 - 22,642,871
Machinery & equipment 4,101,818 191,947 - 4,293,765
Motor Vehicles 2,754,023 181,809 44,000 2,891,832
Total accumulated depreciation: 36,543,642 2,879,878 44,000 39,379,520
Total capital assets being depreciated,net 61,677,680 (659,383) - 61,018,297
Governmental activites capital assets, net $ 77,175,117 $ 9,692,296 $ - $ 86,867,413
For the year ended June 30, 2019, depreciation was charged to the following functions:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 129,055
Public safety 386,128
Public works 718,064
Library 342,017
Recreation 55,724
Education 1,204,890
Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 2,835,878
Continued
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Note 6. Capital Assets(Continued)

Business-type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated:

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings & improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery & equipment
Motor Vehicles

Total capital assets, being depreciated:

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings & improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery & equipment
Motor Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation:
Total capital assets being depreciated,net

Business-type activites capital assets, net

For the year ended June 30, 2019, depreciation was charged to the following functions:

Business-type activities
Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Police Detall

Total business-type activities depreciation expense

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

177,452  $ - $ - 177,452
2,541,870 - 2,541,870 -
2,719,322 - 2,541,870 177,452
1,214,181 - 1,214,181
44,729,963 3,070,798 - 47,800,761
1,857,270 209,809 - 2,067,079
1,020,217 119,575 - 1,139,792
48,821,631 3,400,182 - 52,221,813
715,466 31,599 - 747,065
16,347,776 592,183 - 16,939,959
679,911 178,561 - 858,472
844,946 55,312 - 900,258
18,588,099 857,655 - 19,445,754
30,233,532 2,542,527 - 32,776,059
$ 32,952,854 $ 2,542,527 $ 2,541,870 $ 32,953,511

$ 443,957

382,699

30,999

8 857,655
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Note 7. Long-Term Obligation
General obligation bonds, notes and loans payable:

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligan bonds have been issued for both gengoalernment and proprietary
activities. Inaddition, general obligation bonds have been issued to refund previously outstanding general
obligation bonds.

Rhode Island general laws cap the amount of each mulitigpayeneral obligation bonds that may be
outstanding to 3% of its assessed property values. Exceptions apply to bonds financed from nontax revenues
and speciaéxemptions are granted for other purposes as well. The assessed value of the Town's@bpertie
December 31, 2@l was $2965,317,648 limiting the amount of nomxceptedgeneral obligation bonds
outstanding to 88,959,529 At June 30, 209, bonds outstanding totaled$220,000

On September 25, 2018, the Town issued $3,620,000 in genegatmiibond to refund on a current basis,
$3,850,000 of the outstanding GOBOpen Space and Improvement to Municipal Buildings, 2007 and 2008
bonds. The net carrying value of the old debt exceed the reacquisition price by $112,847 which is being
amortizedover the new debtds | ife.

Defeasance ofabt:

On July 1 2003, the Town issued $18,770,000 in general obligation bonds with an averaegt riate of

3.83% to refund in advanc6,980,000 in 1996 bonds and $11,360,000 in 1993 bonds. Th@mokteds

were used to purchase U.S. Government #gEsiwhich were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an
escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1996 bonds and the redemption of the
1993 bonds. Accordingly, the trust account tssaed the liability for defeased bonds aa included in the

Town's finan@l statements. Odune 30, 209, the outstanding balance of dadedbonds is $&,780,000

A summaryof longterm obligations at June 30, ZDi% as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
General obligation bonds $ 20,220,000 $ - $ 20,220,000
BANS 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
Premium on bond issuance 2,425,332 - 2,425,332
Total bonds payable 47,645,332 - 47,645,332
Loans payable - 5,168,650 5,168,650
Capital leases - - -
MERS Pension 2,658,611 - 2,658,611
ERSRI Pension 45,182,730 - 45,182,730
Police Pension 14,217,768 - 14,217,768
OPEB obligation 13,602,574 - 13,602,574
Accrued compensated absences 4,312,982 - 4,312,982
127,619,997 5,168,650 132,788,647
Less portion due within one year 3,103,345 349,000 3,452,345

Total long term debt

$ 124,516,652

$ 4,819,650 $ 129,336,302
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Note7. Long-Term Obligation (Continued)
Governmental Activities Amounts
Amount of Date Interest Maturity Balance, Refunding/ Balance, Due Within
Purpose Original Issue Issued Rate Date July 1,2018 New Issues Retired June 30,2019  One Year
General obligation bonds
Open space $ 3,000,000 06/15/07 4.13-550% 06/15/27 $ 1,350,000 $ - $1350,000 $ $
Improvements to municipal buildings 5,000,000 07/01/08 3.75-4.75% 07/01/28 2,750,000 - 2,750,000 - -
Refunding - School construction & renovation 22,055,000 06/25/15 3.00-5.00% 08/01/26 18,495,000 - 1,715,000 16,780,000 1,780,000
Refunding of 2007 Bonds 1,285,000 09/25/18 4.125-4.250% 06/30/27 1,285,000 175,000 1,110,000 140,000
Refunding of 2008 Bonds 2,335,000 09/25/18 4.00-4.375% 06/30/29 - 2,335,000 5,000 2,330,000 235,000
Total general obligation bonds 33,675,000 22,595,000 3,620,000 5,995,000 20,220,000 2,155,000
BANS
General obligation BANs 2018 Series 1 25,000,000 09/25/18 3.50-5.00% 09/15/20 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
Total BANS 25,000,000 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
Premium on bond issuance 1,751,903 1,260,597 587,168 2,425,332 775,826
Total bonds payable 58,675,000 24,346,903 29,880,597 6,582,168 47,645,332 2,930,826
Capital lease
Type 1 Ambulance Ford F-550 235,420 06/05/17 3.07% 06/05/19 81,423 - 81,423
Trash Truck 202,123 06/30/14 1.57% 06/18/19 41,682 - 41,682
Total capital leases $ 437,543 $ 123,105 $ - $ 123,105 $ $
Others:
Net pension liability - MERS $ 3,006569 $ - $ 347958 $ 2,658611 $
Net pension liability - ERS 45,057,871 124,859 - 45,182,730
Town pension liability 13,256,277 961,491 - 14,217,768
Net OPEB liability 13,343,281 259,293 - 13,602,574 -
Accrued compensated absences 4,418,897 - 105,915 4,312,982 172,519
Total long-term obligations $103,552,903 $31,226,240 $ 7,159,146 $127,619,997 $3,103,345
Continued
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Note7. Long-Term Obligation (Continued)

Business-type activites: Amounts
Amount of Date Interest Maturity Balance, Balance, Due Within
Purpose Original Issue  Issued Rate Date July 1, 2018 New Issues Retired June 30, 2019 One Year

Loans payable
Enterprise fund, Sewer
Rhode Island Clean Water
Finance Agency
Sewer system improvements $ 2,902,500 03/29/11  1.45-4.35% 09/01/31 $ 2,257,500 $
Sewer system improvements 849,000 07/30/15 1.33-2.96% 09/01/34 809,000

$ 120000 $ 2137500 $ 124,000
38,000 771,000 39,000

Enterprise fund, Water
Rhode Island Clean Water
Finance Agency

Water system improvements 300,000 04/19/04 3.50% 09/01/24 48,583 - 6,000 $ 42,583 7,000
Water system improvements 1,800,000 03/01/07  3.03-3.40% 09/01/27 1,065,000 - 89,000 $ 976,000 93,000
Water system improvements 1,500,000 11/06/09  0.55-4.15% 09/01/29 1,070,000 - 67,000 $ 1,003,000 69,000
Water system improvements 362,568 02/12/10  0.36-4.09% 09/01/30 254,567 - 16,000 $ 238,567 17,000
Total long-term obligations $ 7,714,068 $ 5504,650 $ - $ 336000 $ 5168650 $ 349,000
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Note7. Long-Term Obligation (Continued)

At June 30, 204, annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation
bonds, loans payable and capital leases are as follows:

General obligation bonds:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 2,155,000 856,875 3,011,875
2021 2,230,000 766,150 2,996,150
2022 2,325,000 656,025 2,981,025
2023 2,415,000 541,225 2,956,225
2024-2028 10,875,000 1,041,313 11,916,313
2029 220,000 5,500 225,500
$20,220,000 $3,867,088 $24,087,088

BAN

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 25,000,000 500,000 25,500,000
$25,000,000 $ 500,000 $25,500,000

Loans payable:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 349,000 166,246 515,246
2021 362,000 155,837 517,837
2022 375,000 144574 519,574
2023 388,000 132,508 520,508
2024-2028 2,155,582 458,359 2,613,941
2029-2035 1,539,068 125,314 1,664,382
$ 5,168,650 $1,182,838 $ 6,351,488
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Note 8. ERS Pension Plans

All eligible employees of the Town ameovered by one of four pension planghe Town of Lincoln
Retirement Plan (Town Plan),gh_aborers' Internatnal Union of North America Pension Fun{Union
Plan), the EmployeesRetirementSystemof the State of Rhodelsland(Teaders' Plan), and the Municipal
Employees' Retireme&ystem (MunicipaPlan).

Employees' Retirement System Defined Benefit Pendem P

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description- Certain employees of the Town of kimin, Rhode Island (Lincoln) participate in a eost

sharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plant h e Empl oyeesbd Ret-i r eme
admi ni stered by the Employeesd Retirement System o
sharingplan, pension obligations for employees of all employers are pooled and plan assets are available to
pay the benefits of the employees of any panitiiiy employer providing pension benefits through the plan,
regardl ess of t he gneatbfits persibn oblipadon ® ithp planyTaea ptad prqvides
retirement and disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.

The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and require
supplementary information for the plans. The report may be obtaimgigh 2www.ersri.org

Benefit provisims i The level of benefits provided to participants is established by Chapttd 86 the
GeneralLaws, which is subject to amendment by the General Assembly. Member benefit provisions vary
based on service credits accumulated at dates specified ins/arieendments to the General Laws outlining
minimum retirement age, benefit accrual rates and maxinbenefit provisions. In general, members
accumulate service credits for each year of service subject to maximum benefit accruals of 80% or 75%. For
those hired after June 30, 2012, the benefit accrual rate is 1% per year with a maximum benefibaccrual
40%. Members eligible to retire at September 30, 2009 may retire with 10 years of service at age 60 or after
28 years of service at any age. The rai@at eligibility age increases proportionately for other members
reflecting years of service andher factors until it aligns with the Social Security Normal Retirement Age,
which applies to any member with less than 5 years of service as of July 1,\2@dihers are vested after 5

years of service.

The plan provi des fsewmcecennactedieatio and certain &umpesum death Hereefits.
Joint and survivor benefit provision options are available to members.

Cost of living adjustmentare provided but are currently suspended until the collective plans administered by
ERSRI reach dunded status of 80%. Until the plans reach an 80% funded status, interim cost of living
adjustments is provided at feyear intervals commencing with tpbé&n year endindune 30, 2016

The plan also provides nonservicennected disability benefitsiter five years of service and service
connected disability benefits with no minimum service requirement.

Continued
50


http://www.ersri.org/

TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 8. ERS Pension Plan (Continued)

Employees' Retirement System Defined Benefit Pension Plan

General Information about the Pensklan

Contributions - The funding policy, as set forth in the General Laws, Secticil6i®, provides for
actuarially determined periodic contribaris to the planFor fiscal 209, Town teachers were required to
contribute 3.75% of their annual coveredasy, except for teachers with twenty or more years of service as
of June 30, 2012 must contribute 11% of their annual covered s@larstate and thEown are equired to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate, 40% itivis to be paid by the state and the remaining 60% is
to be paid byTown; the rates weré&0.8% and 135% of annual covered payroll for thiscal year ended
June 30, 204 for the state ah Town, respectively. Thelown contributed$3,456,070 $3,295,583and
$3.340,370for the fiscal years endedune 30, 204, 2018 and 20%, respectively, equal to 100% of the
required contributions for each year.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Berred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

At June 30, 209, the Town reprted a liability of $45,82,730for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability that reflected a reduction for contributions made by the state. Theramsmagnized by the Town as

its proportionate share of the n@#nsion liability, the related state support and the total portion of the net
pension liability that was associated with the Town were as follows:

Town proportionate share

of net pension liability $45,182,730
State's proportionate share of the net pension

liability associated with the Town 33,703,071
Total net pension liability $78,885,801

The net pension liability was measured as of June 3@, 28 measurement datend the total pension
liability used to calculate the net méon liability was determined by an actuarialuation as of June 30,
2017 rolled forwardto June 30, 2 The Town proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of theTown longterm share of contributions to the pension plan redatiy the projected
contributions of all participating employers and the state, acliyadietermined. AtJune 30, 208the Town
proportion was %.2207116%.
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For the year endedune 30, 202 the Town recognized gross pension expenses@5i,429and revenue of
$2,643,958for supportprovided by the State. Atlune 30, 204 the Town reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resegreelated to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Description of Outflows/Inflows of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and

actual experience $ 660,867 $ 861,776

Changes of assumptions 3,282,005 531,706

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 539,689 -

Changes in proportion and differences
between System contributions and
proportionate share contributions - 3,518,355

System contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 3,456,070 -
$ 7,938,631 $ 4,911,837

Net amount of deferred outflows and
(inflows) excluding Town contributions
subsequent to measurement date $ (429,276)

$3,456,070reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from theohtvtutions
in fiscal year 202 subsequent to the measurmrh date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the subsguent period Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenseves follo

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 402,375
2021 (149,099)
2022 (935,798)
2023 (146,034)
2024 264,586
Thereafter 134,694
$ (429,276)

Actuarial Assumptions - the total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, appligd all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.00% to 13.009
Investment rate of return 7.00%
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Employees' Retirement System Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Mortality T variants of theRP-2014 mortality tables for the improvement scale, update to the ultimate rates of
the MR2016 projection scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation rolled forward to June 30, 2018 and the
calculation of the total pension lidity at June 30, 2018 were consistent with the results of an actuarial
experience study performed as of June 30620

The longterm expected rate of return besttimate on pension plan investments was determined by the actuary
using a buildingblock mehod. The actuary started by calculating hetimate future expected real rates of
return (expected returns ndtgension plan investment expense and inflation) for each major asset class, based
on a collective summary of capital market expectatioms f84 sources. The June 30, 2018 expected arithmetic
returns over the lonterm (20 years) by asset class are surired in the following table:

Target Long-Term
Asset Expected Real
Asset class Allocation Rate of Return
GROWTH
Global equity:
U.S. Equity 20.80% 6.43%
International Developed Equity 14.40% 6.72%
Emerging Markets Equity 4.80% 8.90%
Sub-total 40.00%
Private Growth
Private Equity 11.30% 9.08%
Non-Core Real Estate 2.20% 5.03%
Opportunistic Private Credit 1.50% 9.08%
Sub-total 15.00%
INCOME
High Yield Infrastructure 1.00% 3.81%
REITS 1.00% 5.03%
Liquid Credit 2.80% 3.81%
Private Credit 3.20% 3.81%
Sub-total 8.00%
STABILITY
Crisis Protection Class
Treasury Duration 4.00% 0.61%
Systematic Trend 4.00% 4.00%
Sub-total 8.00%
Inflation Protection
Core Real Estate 3.60% 5.03%
Private Infrastructure 2.40% 5.61%
TIPs 1.00% 1.75%
Natural Resources 1.00% 3.81%
Sub-total 8.00%
Volatility Protection
IG Fixed Income 11.50% 2.14%
Absolute Return 6.50% 4.00%
Cash 3.00% 0.61%
Sub-total 21.00%
100.00%
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These return assumptions are then weighted by the target asset allocation percentage, facboriation
effects, to develop the overall logrm expected rate of return bestimate on an arithmetic basis.

Employees' Btirement System Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Discount rate- the discount rate used to measurettital pension liabilitywas 7.0percent. The projection

of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan mefhiieeraadé

at the current contribution rate and that contributions from the employers will be made at statutorily required
rate s |, actuarially determined. Based on those ass
projected to be available toake all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the longterm expected rate of return on pem plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivty of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount rdtee following presents the net
pension liability (aset) calculat using the discount rate of 7g&rcent as well as what the net pension
liability (asset) would be if it were callaied using a discount rate that igpdrcentaggoint lower or 1
percentaggoint higher than the current rate.

1.00% Decrease Current Discount 1.00% Increase
(6.0%) Rate (7.0%) (8.0%)

$ 56,847,613 $ 45182,730 $ 36,494,455

Pension plan fiduciary net position-d et ai | ed i nf or mati on about the pel
available in the separately issued ERSRI financial report.

Note 9. Defined Contribution Pension Plan
Defined Contribution PlanDescription:

Employees participating in the defined benefit plan with less than 20 years of service as of June 30, 2012, as
described above, also patrticipate in a defined contribygian authorized by General Law ChapterlBG63.

The defined contribubin plan is established under IRS section 401(a) and is administered byCREFR.
Employees may choose among various investment options available to plan participants. = Employees
contribute 5% of their annual covered salary and employers contributedreti®¢ and 1.5% of annual
covered salary depending on the employeeb6s total
contributions are immediately vested while employer coniobstand any investment earnings thereon are
vested after three years abntributory service. Benefit terms and contributions required under the plan by
both the employee and employer are established by the General Laws, which are subject to ametitenent by
General Assembly.

Amounts in the defined contribution plan are $alde to participants in accordance with Internal Revenue
Service guidelines for such plans.

The Town of Lincoln, Rhode Islan@cognized pensioexpense 0$596,224 for thefiscal year endedune
30, 2018
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The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for plans administered by the systefe report may be obtained at
http://www.ersri.org

Note 10. Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) Defined Beneffension Plan
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description- The MunicipalEmp |l oyees d Ret i r e manmgent wltiphkempioyef MER S |
definedbenefit pension planprovides certain retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. MERS was established under Rhode Island General Law and plaaethemidanagement of

the Employeeds RetiremenSRl) Bgrd to @rovide retirerRamtoatloevandestb a n d
employees of municipalities, housing authorities, water and sewer districts, and municipal police and fire
persons thahave elected t@articipate. Benefit provisions are subject to amendment by the General
Assembly.

MERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. This report may be obtained accessing the BRBse atvww.ersri.org

Benefits providedi General employees, police officers and firefighters employed by electing municipalities
participate in MERS. Eligible employees become members at their date of employmgelemploye

by a municipality at the time the municipality joins MERS may elect not to be covered. Elected officials may
opt to be covered by MERS. Employees covered under another plan maintained by the municipality may not
become members of MERS. Rwli officers ad/or firefighters may be designated as such by the
municipality, in which case the special contribution and benefit provisions described below will apply to
them, or they may be designated as general employees with no special benefits. svimsiggratechs

police officers and/or firefighters are treated as belonging to a unit separate from the general employees, with
separate contribution rates applicable.

Salary: Salary includes the member's base earnings plus any payments under bbneguity orincentive

plan. Salary excludes overtime, unused sick and vacation leave, severance pay, and other extraordinary
compensation. Certain amounts that are excluded from taxable wages, such as amounts sheltered under a
Section 125 plan or amounpécked up bythe employer under IRC Section 414(h), are not excluded from
salary.

Service: Employees receive credit for service while a member. In addition, a member may purchase credit for
certain periods by making an additional contribution to purchiaseadditiomal service. Special rules and
limits govern the purchase of additional service and the contribution required.

Final Compensation: Prior to July 1, 2012 and for general employee members eligible to retire as of June 30,
2012, the average wdsased on t he member és highest three con
2012, the average was based on the membighest five consecutive annual salaries. Once a member retires

or is terminated, the applicable FAC will be the greater ofteemb e r 6 s hi ghest t hree y.
2012 or the five year FAC as of the retirement/termination date. Monthly lzeaedibased on oitevelfth of

this amount.
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Note 10. Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) Defined @nefit Pension Plan (©ntinued)

General employees

Members with less than five years of contributory service as of June 30, 2012 and memdbens birafter
that date are eligible for retirement on or after their Social Security normal retirement age (SSNRA).

Members whohad at least five years of contributory service as of June 30, 2012 will be eligible for
retirement at an individually deterrme d age. This age is the result o
prior Retirement Date, described below, and the retirengmtagplicable to members hired after June 30,

2012 as described above. The interpolation is based on service as of Ju@&23@ivitied by projected
service at the memberdés prior Retirement Date. Th

Members with 10 or morgears of contributory service on June 30, 2012 may choose to retire at their prior
Retirement Date if they continue to wakd contribute until that date. If this option is elected, the retirement
benefit will be calculated using the benefits accruedfasine 30, 2012, i.e., the member will accumulate no
additional defined benefits after this date, but the benefit will lkbvaghout any actuarial reduction.

Effective July 1, 2015, members will be eligible to retire with full benefits at the eafligreir current

Rhode Island Retirement Security Act (RIRSA) date described above or upon the attainment of age 65 with
30 years of service, age 64 with 31 years of service, age 63 with 32 years of service, or age 62 with 33 years
of service.

A member vino is within five years of reaching their retirement eligibility date and has 20 or more years of
service, may elect to re¢irat any time with an actuarially reduced benefit.

Prior to July 1, 2012, members were eligible for retirement on or after adets¥ had credit for 10 or
more years of service, or at any age if they had credit for at least 30 years of servicersMdigibée to
retire before July 1, 2012 were not impacted by the changes to retirement eligibility above.

The annual benefitis q u a | to 2.00% of the memberdés monthly F
2012 and 1. 00% of FAGfer eatreysd & sefvise fromo July h PO¢2 through June 30,
2015. For all service after June 30, 2015, the annual bendjitdd ® 1.0% per year unless the member had

20 or more years of service as of June 30, 2012 in which case the benefitiac2iQf4l per year for service
after June 30, 2015. The benefit cannot exceed 75

Police and Fire employees

Members are eligible to retire when they are at least 50 years old and have a minimum of 25 years of
contributing service or if they have 27 years of contributing service at any age. Members with less than 25
years of contributig service are eligible faretirement on or after their Social Security normal retirement
age.

Members who, as of June 30, 2012, had at least 10 years of contributing service, had attained age 45, and had
a prior Retirement Date before age 52 may retirgge 52.

Active member=oon June 30, 2012 may choose to retire at their prior Retirement Date if they continue to
work and contribute until that date. If option is elected, the retirement benefit will be calculated using the
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benefits accrued as of June 30, 2012, i.e., the member will accumulate no additional defined benefits after
this date, but the benefit will be paid without any actuarial reduction.

A member who is within fivgrears of reaching their retirement eligibility date, as described in this section,
and has 20 or more years of service, may elect to retire at any time with an actuarially reduced benefit.

Prior to July 1, 2012, members desitpthas police officers oiréfighters were eligible for retirement at or

after age 55 with credit for at least 10 years of service or at any age with credit for 25 or more years of
service. Members were also eligible to retire and receive a reduced fehefj are at least ag® and have

at least 20 years of service. If the municipality elected to adopt tyedOretirement provisions for police
officers and/or firefighters, then such a member was eligible to retire at any age with 20 or mod years
service. Members eligibl to retire before July 1, 2012 were not impacted by the changes to retirement
eligibility above.

A monthly benefit is paid equal to 2.00% of the m
years (75% of FAC maxiom).

If the optional 26year retirement provisions were adopted by the municipality prior to July 1, 2012: benefits
are based on 2.50% of the memberds FAC for each
member 6s FAC f orreafieadulyl, 0822 THe o rf e fsietr viannot exceed 7
FAC.

Active members (including future hires), members who retire after July 1, 2015 and after attaining age 57
with 30 years of service will have a benefit equal to the greater ofdineant benefit described (a) and
(b) above and one calculated based on a 2.25% multiplier for all years of service.

Other benefit provisions

Death and disability benefits are also provided to members. A member is eligible for a disability rétiremen
provided he/she has credit for at least five years of service or if the disability igelaied. Members are
not eligible for an ordinary disdlty benefit if they are eligible for unreduced retirement.

Joint and survivor benefit options are avlidato retirees For some employees, Social Security Option is
also available where an annuity is paid at one amount prior to age 62, andwateal rachount after age 62,
designed to provide a level total income when combined with the member's agei@2S&curity benefit.
Benefits cease upon the memberdéds death.

Postretirement benefit increases are paid to members who retire after June 20, @@ibers will be
eligible to receive cost of | i vi ngsaryofretremensaadstheat t
month following their SSNRA (age 55 for members designated as police officers and/or firefighters). When a
municipality ekcts coverage, it may elect either COLA C (covering only current and future active members
and excluding nmabers already retired) or COLA B (covering current retired members as well as current and
future active members).

Continued
57



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 10. Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

a. The COLA will be suspended for any unihose funding level is less than 80%; however, an interim
COLA may be granted in fowyear intervals while the COLA is suspended. The first inteZi®LA may
begin January 1, 2018.

b. Effective July 1, 2015, the COLA is determined based on 50% of dhés fiveyear average investment

rate of return less 5.5% limited to a range of 0.0% to 4.0%, plus 50% of the lesser of 3.0% or last year's CPI
U increase for a total maximum increase of 3.50%. Previously, it was the plarysdivaverage investment

rate of return less 5.5% limited to a range of 0.0% to 4.0%

c. The COLA will be limited to the first $25,000 of the member's annual pension béefitetirees and
beneficiaries who retired on or before July 1, 2015, years in which a COLA is payaldeobatbe every
fourth year provision described in (a) above will be limited to the first $30,000. These limits will be indexed
annually to increasanithe same manner as COLAs, with the known values of $25,000 for 2013, $25,000 for
2014, $25,168 for 201%$25,855 for 2016, and $26,098 for 2017.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the June 30, 2(valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

General Rescue
Employees Employee:
Retirees and Beneficiaries 6 9
Inactive, Nonretired Members 11 4
Active Members 16 16
Total 33 29

Contributions- The amount of employee and employer contributions have been established unddisRhdde
General Law Chapter 4B1. General employeasith less than 20 years of service as afiel80, 2012are
required to contribute 1% of their salari&eneral employees with more than 20 years of service as of June 30,
2012 are required to contribuBe25%. Public safety employees arequired to contribute 9%f their salaries.

The Town conibutes at a rate of covered employee payroll as determined by an independent actuary on an
annual basis. The GemrAssembly can amend the amount of thesdrimution requirements. The Town
contributed $9,456to their general employee MERS plianthe year endedune 30, 208 which was8.80% of

annual covered payroll and contributet6$,008to their rescue employee MERS planthe year endedune

30, 20B which was 186% of annual covered payroll.
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Net Pension Liability (Asset)- The total pension liability was determined by actuarial valnatjgeformed as
of June 30, 207 androlled forward to June 30, 28lusing the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement.

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions Used in the Valuations to determine the NdtiRkitisjahthe
June 30, 2@Imeasurema date (June 30, Z0daluatiorrolled forward tdune 30, 2@)

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Norméhe Individual Entry Age Actuarial Cost methodology is used.
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payr@lose

Actuariadssumptions

Investment Rate of Returr] 7.00%

Projected Salary Increase| General Employeé&s50% to 7.9 Polic& Fire Employee$.00% to 14.00%
25%

Inflation

Mortality variants of tiRR2014 mortality tablésr themprovement scale, update t
ultimate rates of the-ROR6 projection scale.

Cost of Living Adjustment{ A 2% COLA is assumed after January 1, 2014.

Mortality

The actuarial assyptions used in the June 30, Z0taluation rolled forward to June 3@018 and he
calculation of the total pesion liability at June 30, 281were consistent with the results of an actuarial
experience study performed as of June 306201

The longterm expected rate of return bestimate on pension plan investments was determimethe
actuary using a buildinglock method. The actuary started by calculating-bssinate future expected real
rates of return (expected returns net of pension plan investment expense and inflagach forajor asset
class, based on a collectivensmary of cajtal market expectations fromd3ources. The June 30, A1
expected arithmetic returns over the ldegn (20 years) by asset class are summarized in the following
table:
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Target Long-Term
Asset Expected Real
Asset class Allocation Rate of Return
GROWTH
Global equity:
U.S. Equity 20.80% 6.43%
International Developed Equity  14.40% 6.72%
Emerging Markets Equity 4.80% 8.90%
Sub-total 40.00%
Private Growth
Private Equity 11.30% 9.08%
Non-Core Real Estate 2.20% 5.03%
Opportunistic Private Credit 1.50% 9.08%
Sub-total 15.00%
INCOME
High Yield Infrastructure 1.00% 3.81%
REITS 1.00% 5.03%
Liquid Credit 2.80% 3.81%
Private Credit 3.20% 3.81%
Sub-total 8.00%
STABILITY
Crisis Protection Class
Treasury Duration 4.00% 0.61%
Systematic Trend 4.00% 4.00%
Sub-total 8.00%
Inflation Protection
Core Real Estate 3.60% 5.03%
Private Infrastructure 2.40% 5.61%
TIPs 1.00% 1.75%
Natural Resources 1.00% 3.81%
Sub-total 8.00%
Volatility Protection
IG Fixed Income 11.50% 2.14%
Absolute Return 6.50% 4.00%
Cash 3.00% 0.61%
Sub-total 21.00%
100.00%

The® return assumptions are then weightedhsytarget asset allocation percentage, factoring in correlation
effects, to develop the overall logrm expected rate of return bestimate on an arithmetic basis

Discount rate- The discount rate used to nseise the total pensioliability of the plans was 7.percent. The

projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will

be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from theyensplall be made at statutorily
rates, actuari al
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.

reui r ed

y determined.

Based

on

Therefore,the longterm expected rate of returon pension plan investments was applied to all periods of

projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) - General Employees

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pensiol  Plan Fiduciary Net Pensiol
Liability Net Position Liability
Balances as of June 30, 2017 $2,866,946 $2,175572 $ 691,374
Changes for the Year
Service cost 103,895 - 103,895
Interest on the total pension liability 200,726 - 200,726
Changes in benefits - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience  (44,870) - (44,870)
Changes in assumptions - - -
Employer contributions - 130,511 (130,511)
Employee contributions - 11,546 (11,546)
Net investment income - 187,052 (187,052)
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (102,764) (102,764) -
Administrative expense - (2,490) 2,490
Other changes - 100,330 (100,330)
Net changes 156,987 324,185 (167,198)
Balances as of June 30, 2018 $3,023,933 $ 2,499,757 $ 524,176

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) - Rescue Employees

Balances as of June 30, 2017
Changes for the Year

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pensior Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position  Liability
$5,989,402 $ 3,674,207 $2,315,195

Service cost 171,482 - 171,482
Interest on the total pension liability 414,749 - 414,749
Changes in benefits - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience (238,456) - (238,456)
Changes in assumptions - - -
Employer contributions - 152,968 (152,968)
Employee contributions - 87,109 (87,109)
Net investment income - 291,985 (291,985)
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (300,304) (300,304) -
Administrative expense - (3,887) 3,887
Other changes - - -
Net changes 47,471 227,871 (180,400)

Balances as of June 30, 2018

$6,036,873 $ 3,902,078 $2,134,795
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount ratde following presents the net
pension liability (asset) of the employers calculated using the discaandfra.Opercent, as well as what the
emd oyersod net pension |iability (asset) woui d
percentaggoint lower or ipercentaggoint higher than the current rate.

General Employee Plan

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(6.00%) Rate (7.00%) (8.00%)

$ 868,104 $ 524,176 $ 268,117
RescueEmployeePlan

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(6.00%) Rate (7.00%) (8.00%)

$ 2832475 $ 2,134,795 $1,615,258

Pension plan fiduciary net positio;-d et ai | ed i nf ormati on about the
available in the separately issued ERSRI financial report.

per

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

Pensions

General Empoyees Plan

For the year endedune 30, 204 the employer recognized peosi expense o$64,563 The employer
reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences in assumptions $ 78,144 3% 91,705
Difference between expected
and actual experience 32,895 2,787
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
investments 1,239 -
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 97,456 -

$ 209,734 % 94,492
Net amount of deferred outflows and
(inflows) excluding contributions
subsequent to measurement date $ 17,786
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of nessurelated to pesions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 50,574
2021 1,729
2022 (28,523)
2023 (5,994)
$ 17,786

Rescue Employees Plan

For the yea endedJune 30, 209 the employer recognized pension expense 2183802 The employer
reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the followiessou

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences in assumptions $ 312,855 $ 12,810
Difference between expected
and actual experience 192,226 334,864
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
investments 20,042 -
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 169,008 -

$ 694,131 $ 347,674
Net amount of deferred outflows and
(inflows) excluding contributions
subsequent to measurement date $ 177,449

Amounts reported as figred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions wikdegnized
in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 73,983

2021 41,746

2022 (5,475)

2023 26,582

2024 43,047
Thereafter (2,434)
$ 177,449
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Defined Contribution Plan Description:

Certain employees participating in the defined benefit plan, asilbedcabove, may also participate in a
defined contribution plan authorized by General Law Chap8t0.3. The defined contribution plan is
established under IRS section 401(a) and is administered by-TRBF. Employees may choose among
various investrant options available to plan participants. Employees contribute 1 to 1.5% of their annual
coveral salary and employers contribute 5% of annual covered salary. Employee contributions are
immediately vested while employer contributions and any investesnings thereon are vested after three

years of contributory service. Benefit terms and contiobs required under the plan by both the employee

and employer are established by the General Laws, which are subject to amendment by the General Assembly.

Amounts in the defined contribution plan are available to participants in accordance with IR&vaale
Service guidelines for such plans.

TheTown of Lincolnrecognized pension expense$d#,905 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201

The Systemissues a publicly available financial report thatludes financial statements and required
suppementary information for plans administered by the systeifihe report may be obtained at
http://www.ersri.org

Note 12. Teacher Survivors (TSB)Benefit Plan
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description- Certain employees of the Town of Lincoln (Town) participate in aslaating multiple

employer defined benefit pension plant he Te ac her engfit Bam+ adnivistered byBhe

Empl oyeesd Retirement Sy dt(System)o Under d avsheBingalare pension R h o (
obligations for employees of all employers are pooled and plan assets are available to pay the benefits of the
employes of any participating employer providing pension benefits through the plan, regardiessiaitus

of the employersd payment of its pension obligati
school teachers in lieu of Social Secusiyce not all school districts participate in Social Security.

The System issues a pidy available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the plans. The report may be obtaimeih Zwww.ersri.org

Eligibility and plan benefits- the plan provides a survivor benefit to public school teachers in lieu of Social
Security since not all school districts participate in the plan. Specific eligibility critedahe amount of the
benefit is subject to the provisions of Chapterl®6ofthe Rhode Island General Laws which are subject to

amendment by the General Assembl y. Spouse, par e
the death of a memeb. A spouse shall be entitled to benefits upon attaining the age of sixtyg®a.
Chil drendéds benefits are payable to the child, i nc

the child is unmarried and under the age of eighteeny@®)s or twentthree (23) years and a full time
student, and was dependent mpot he member at the time of t he me
provided if at the time of the memberbés death th
dexased member entitled to child benefits. Parents benefits are payable trahe qr parents of a
deceased member if the member did not leave a widow, widower, or child who could ever qualify for
mont hly benefits on the nreanchedtne@age ofvb@ years haa modrentarhiesl, p a
and received support from theember.
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In January, a yearly cosf-|
security adjustment.

i ving

adjustment f

or

spouseds

benefi

Survivors are eligible for benefits if the member has enazhtributions for at least six months prior to death

or retirement.

The TSB plan provides benefits based on the highest salary at the time of retirement of the teacfiex. Bene
are payable in accordance with the following table:

Highest Annual Salary

$17,000 or less

$17,001 to $25,000
$25,001 to $33,000
$33,001 to $40,000
$40,001 and over

Basic Monthly
Spousesods
$ 825.00
$ 962.50
$ 1,100.00
$1237.50
$1375.00

Benefitspayable to children and families are equal to the spousal benefit multiplied by the percentage below:

Parent and 10ne Chilg Two Three or more
Parentand| or more Alone | Children Children Dependent
Child Children Alone Alone Parent
150% 175% 75% 150% 175% 100%

Contributions- The contribution requirements of active employees and the participating school districts were
established under Chapter-16 of the Rhode Island General Lawdjigh may be amended by the General

Assembly. The cost df h e

benefi

ts provided

by

t he

pl an

are t

up to but not exceeding an annual salary of $11,500hatig1/2) of the cost is contributed by the member
by deductions from his or her salary, and the other half {(&/2pntributed and paid by the respective school
district by which the member is employed. These contributions are in addition to the contributions required

for regular pension benefits.

The Town contributed$33,479, $35,063and £7,552for the fiscal years endetune 30, 204, 2018 and
2017, respectively, equal to 100% of the required contributions for each year.

PensionAsset Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferrddvisfof Resources

At June 30, 209 the Town reported an asset $f,204,930for its proportionate share of the net pension
asset related to its participation in TSB. The net pension assetmeasured as of June 30, &0the
measurement date, and theatgtension liability used to cal@atke thenet pension assetas determined by
an actudal valuation as of June 30, Z0IThe Town proportion of thaeet pension asset was based on its
share of contributions to the TSB for fiscal year @@dlative to theotal contributions of alparticipating
employers for tht fiscal year. Adune 30, 208the Town proportion was A1249896%.

For the year endetline 30, 202 the Town recognized pension expense(8DHL87)i an increase in the net
pension asset. Aline 30, 202 the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Continued
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Note 12. Teacher Survivors TSB) Benefit Plan (Continued)

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Description of Outflows/Inflows of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and

actual experience $ 716,444  $ 705,619

Changes of assumptions 554,038 -

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 95,428 -

Changes in proportion and differences
between System contributions and
proportionate share contributions 238,102 36,817

System contributions subsquent

to the measurement date 33,479 -
$ 1,637,491 $ 742,436

Net amount of deferred outflows and
(inflows) excluding Town contributions
subsequent to measurement date $ 861,576

$33479reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resultingpdrdimvincontributions

in fiscal year 201&ubsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an addition to the net pension
asset for the year endddne 30, 208. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will beecognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 345,776
2021 206,024
2022 427
2023 114,311
2024 142,777
Thereafter 52,261
$ 861,576

Actuarial Assumptions - the totd pension liability was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.00% to 13.009
Investment rate of return 7.00%
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Mortality 7 variants of the RR2014 mortality tables for the improvement scale, updatethe ultimate rates
of the MR2016 projection scale.

Cost of living adjustmerit eligible survivors receive a yearly cost of living adjustment based on the annual
social security adjustmeintfor valuation purposes, a 2.586st of living adjustment is assed.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation and the calculation of the total pension liability
at June 30, 2018 were consistent with the results of an actuarial experience study performed a30of June
2016.

The longterm expected rate of return besitimate on pension plan investments was determined by the
actuary using a buildinglock method. The actuary started by calculating-esinate future expected real

rates of return (expected retumst of pension plan ingtment expense and inflation) for each major asset
class, based on a collective summary of capital market expectations from 34 sources. The June 30, 2018
expected arithmetic returns over the ldagn (20 years) by asset class suemmarized in the folloing table:

Target Long-Term
Asset Expected Real
Asset class Allocation Rate of Return
GROWTH
Global equity:
U.S. Equity 20.80% 6.43%
International Developed Equity 14.40% 6.72%
Emerging Markets Equity 4.80% 8.90%
Sub-total 40.00%
Private Growth
Private Equity 11.30% 9.08%
Non-Core Real Estate 2.20% 5.03%
Opportunistic Private Credit 1.50% 9.08%
Sub-total 15.00%
INCOME
High Yield Infrastructure 1.00%0 3.81%
REITS 1.00% 5.03%
Liquid Credit 2.80%0 3.81%0
Private Credit 3.20% 3.81%
Sub-total 8.00%
STABILITY
Crisis Protection Class
Treasury Duration 4.00% 0.61%0
Systematic Trend 4.00% 4.00%
Sub-total 8.00%
Inflation Protection
Core Real Estate 3.60%0 5.03%
Private Infrastructure 2.40% 5.61%
TIPs 1.00% 1.75%
Natural Resources 1.00% 3.81%
Sub-total 8.00%0
Volatility Protection
IG Fixed Income 11.50% 2.14%
Absolute Return 6.50%0 4.00%
Cash 3.00% 0.61%
Sub-total 21.00%

100.00%

These ratrn assumptions are thareighted by the target asset allocation percentage, factoring in correlation
effects, to develop the overall lotgrm expected rate of return bestimate on an arithmetic basis.
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Note 12. Teacher Survivors (TSBBenefit Plan (Continued)

Discount rate- the discount rate used to measure the total pension liabdisyA®dpercent. The projection

of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contrition rate andhat contributions from the employers will be made at statutorily
required rates, actwuarially determined. Based on
was projected to be available to make all projected future begpefiments ofcurrent plan members.
Therefore, the longerm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liabilityagset) tachanges in the discount ratethe following presents the net
pension liability (asset) calculateusing the discount rate of 7g&rcent as well as what the net pension
liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rateighkpercetagepoint lower or 1
percentaggoint higher than the current rate.

1.00% Decrease Current Discount 1.00% Increase
(6.0%) Rate (7.0%) (8.0%)

$ (2,918,005) $ (4,204,930) $ (5,163,061,

Pension plan fiduciary net positiond et ai | ed i nformati on about the per
available in the separately issued ERSRI financial report.

Note 13. Town Pension Plan
Plan de<ription:
The Town Plan is aostsharing multiple employedefined benefit pensioplan that covers substantially all
Town and School Department employees not covered by other plans, as well as eligible firefighters employed
by two fire districts: Lonsdle Fire andSaylesvilleFire. Employees who work twenty hours or more per week
for mare than five months are eligible to participate. The Town Plan is reported as a Pension Trust Fund in the
Town's financial statements.

Plan membership:

At June 30, 209, pension plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 104
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 28
Active plan members 122
Subtotal 254

Continued
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Note 13. Town Pension Plan Continued)
Benefit provisions:

The Town Plan provides retirement and survivor benefits. The following benefit provisions were established
and may be amended by Town ordinance or union contract:

1 Any participant, who has attained his or her normedfrement date, as defined in the Town Plan, is
eligible for a normal retirement benefit. The monthly benefit payable upon normal retirement is based
on average monthly salary multiplied by credited sereis follows:

Police and LonsdalEirefighters 2 ¥ % of average monthly salary multiplied
credited service up to 20 years, plus 2% of avel
monthly salary multiplied by up to five addition
years of credited service.

Saylesville Firefighters 2 5 % of average monthly salary multipti by
credited service up to 20 years, plus 2% of avel
monthly salary multiplied by up to ten additior
years of credited service.

All other employees 1 % % of average monthly salary multiplied
credited servicewith maximum benefit of 60% o
averlge monthly salary.

Average monthly salary equals the average compensation during the highest three consecutive years out of the
final ten years of employment. Salary includes base compensation plus holiday andhigraevbut not
overtime. Paymenisommence on the first day of the month following the date of an employee's retirement.

i Participants who terminate employment before completing ten years of service are refunded their
employee contributions with annuaitérest credited at 5% after 1997daB /1 2% before 1998.
Participants who terminate employment after completing ten years of service have the option of either a
refund of their employee contribution or a monthly benefit, as described above, at theretremaént
date.

1 The beneficiary of a participant who dies prior to retirement receives the participant's accumulated
contributions. In lieu of this benefit, the surviving spouse can elect to receive a benefit equal to 50% of
the participant's benefitarued to the date of d#h, payable at the participant's normal retirement date.

9 For participants other than police and firefighters, the normal form of benefit is a monthly life annuity.
For the police and firefighters, the normal form of benefit isantimy joint and 67/1 2%survivor
annuity. Optional forms of monthly benefits are available and are determined to be actuarially
equivalent to the normal form of benefit.

1 Police department employees who retire after June 30, 2004 receive an automationtdo a
compounded Cosif-Living Adjustment (COLA) to their monthly pension benefit.
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Funding policy and contributions:
Contribution requirements are established and may be amended by Town Council ordinarae ayniract.

Employeesare required to contribute 4% of their salary; police and firefighters must contribute@%%o,
respectively.

The Town is required to contribute an amount determined in accordance with the actuarial valuation.
Administrative caets are paid from planssets.Contributions to the pension plan from the Town were
$1,730042

Actuarial method and significant assumptions:

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of the June 3@cRdrial valuation using

the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method. Under this method, the excess of the entry age actuarial accrued liability
over the actuarial value of plaassets is amortized over a-yhar closed period as a level % of pay. The
actuarial accrued liability, which is edetermined for each active participant as of each valuation date,
represents the theoretical accumulation of all prior years' normal costs for the present participants as if the Town
Plan had always been in effect. The unfemhéctuarial accrued liabyitrepresents the excess of the actuarial
accrued liability over the Plan's assets, which are valued using the actalréabf/the assets using a fiyear
smoothing of appreciation and/or depreciation.

Inflation 2.10 percent

Salary increases 3.00-6.00 percent, including inflation

Investment rate of return 7.00 percent, net of pension plan investment expel
including inflation

Mortality rates were basl on the RR2014 blue collar mortality with sodiaecurity generational improvement
scale from 2006.

Pension liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions:

At June 30, 209, the Town reported liability $4,217,76or its proporionate share of the net pension liability.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 3®, 20 the total pension liability used to calculate the

net pension liability was determined by an adgtuarl v al uati on as of dnlofahenad at e .
pension | iability was bas etdrmshare @& coptibuatipns  the pensioroplan t h e
relative to the projected contributions of all participating entitiésJune ®, 209, t he Townbs pr op
93.67%, which B adecrease 0f14% from the its proportion measured as of June 303.201

For the year ended, June 30, 20the Town recognized pension expense of $#2,171 At June 30, 209, the
Town reporteddeferred outflows of resources and inflows of resourekzgad to pensions from the following
sources:
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Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 75,818 $ 146,254
Changes in assumptions 1,048,485 79,682
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investmnets - 483,735
Total deferred outflows / (inflows) $ 1,124,303 % 709,670
Total $ 414,632

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pesion expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 113,378
2021 71,060
2022 257,167
2023 (26,973)

$ 414,632

Investmant Policy:

Investments shall be made solatythe interest of the Plan with an emphasis on-tenign growth of principal

while avoiding excessive risk, primarily through asset diversification. Investments of the Plan shall be so
diversified as to minimize the risk targe losses, unless under thieeemstances it is clearly prudent not to do

so. The Plan shall be diversified by maturity, issuer and class of security in order to eliminate the risk of loss
resulting from ovexconcentration of assets. Consistent witbitt respective investment stylasd philosophies,
investment managers should make reasonable efforts to preserve capital, understanding that losses may occur ir
individual securities.

Rate of Return
For the year ended June 30, 90the annual moneweighted weighted rate of return gmension plan

investments, net of pension plan expense Wa8%b. The moneyweighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for changing amounts actually invested.

Continued
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Longterm expected rate of return:

The longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a-blod#ing

method in which beststimate ranges of expected future real rates of returregeeg returns, net of pension
planinvestment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the longerm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and byliag expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocatidnnas3gf, 209 are summarized

in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Domestic fixed income 2.20%
Domestic equities 5.07%
International equities 5.88%
Real estate 5.39%
Group annuity contract 3.00%
Cash 0.69%

Long-term expected ratef return (continued)

Target
Asset Class Allocation
Domestic fixed income 5%
Domestic equities 47%
International equities 12%
Real estate 6%
Group annuity contract 30%
Total 100%

Discount Rate:

The discountate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
andthat contributions will be made at rategual to the difference between actuarially determined contribution

rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projectec
to be available to make all projedtéuture benefit payments of current plaembers. Therefore, the lotgrm

expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the net pesion liability to changes in the discount rate:
The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the

net pension liability would be if it were calctda using a discount rate that is dercentagepoint lower
(6.00%) or ipercentageoint higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(6.00%) Rate (7.00%) (8.00%)

Net Pension Liability $20,268,579 $14,217,769 $9,350,049

Net Pension Liabiity:

Thecomponents of theet pension liabilityof the participating entitieat June 30, 20dwere as follows

Total pension liability $41,470,232
Plan fiduciary net position (27,252,464
Net pension liability $14,217,768

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 65.72%

Aggregate Pension Amounts Reported in the Financial Statements:
As requiredby GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensioanaentment of
GASB Statement No. 34 the table below presents the aggregate amount of pension expense, pension liabilities

(assets), and deferred inflows and outflows for the ddfisenefit plans of the Town of Lincoln, Rhode Island.

MERS MERS Town Plan -
General Rescue ERS TSB Police Total

Net Pension Asset $ - 3 - 3 - $4,204930 $ - $ 4,204,930

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension 209,734 694,131 7,938,631 1,637,491 1,124,303 11,604,290

Deferred Inflows of Resoures - Pension 94,492 347,674 4,911,837 742,436 709,670 6,806,109
Net Pension Liability 524,176 2,134,795 45,182,730 - 14,217,768 62,059,469
Pension Expense 64,563 278,802 5,851,429 (90,187) 2,715,171 8,819,778

$ 892,965 $3,455,402 $63,884,627 $6,494,670 $ 18,766,911 $ 93,494,575
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Plan description:

The Town ofLincoln Town Hall, Public Works, Library and Water union employees participate in the
Laborer's International Union of North America Pension Fund, aglesting multiple employer diefed
benefit plan. Financial stateamts for the Union Plan are issuecagately and may be obtained from the
Laborers National (Industrial) Pension Fund, 905 165th Street, NW., Washington, D.C:1Z®6r by
calling (202) 7371664.

Employees can rat on a regular pension if they have attained at least age 62, ealeast five years of
Pension Credit, and earned at least one year of Pension Credit during the period that their employer is
contributing to the Pension Fund. The amount of regulasipa benefits payable to eligible participants

is determined by the higist contribution rate at which they earned Pension Credit and they years of
Pension Credits they earned (up to a maximum of 30 years of Pension Credits). Vesting of benefits is
attaned for participants who have five or more years of vesting credit (withopermanent break in
service). The fund also provides death and disability benefits.

Contributions required and contributions made:

The Town's required contribution is negotdteith the local union. The Town's contribution was based upon
$2.62 per hour for Town Hall employees,2#7 per hour for Library employees3®7 for hour for Pblic
Works employees, and $14.75 per day for Water employees participating in the Umidar glee period of
July 1, 208 to June 30, 204. Participating employeegre not required to contributéThe Town's required
contributionfor the year ended June 30, 804as $826,724as follows: Public Works (including sewdept)
$195,866 Town Hall$86,077 andLibrary $44,781

Note 15. Other Postemployment Benefits
PlanDescription

The Town of Lincoln administers a singdenployer, defined benefit pestploymenthealthinsuranceplan.
The planprovidesmedical and dentalinsurancefor eligible retireesandtheir dependentshroughthe Town's
group health and dentalinsuranceplans, which cover both active and retired members.Benefitprovisions
are established and amended by the union contracts through negotiations beéll@wn and the repective
unions. The planis reportedas a Trust Fundin the Town's financialstatements.The plan doesnot issuea
publicly availablefinancial report. The Town implemente@&ASB Statement No. 75 in fiscal year 2017 on a
retroactive basis.

The plan provids the following benefits based on emplogeeup:

Police - Officers are eligiblefor lifetime retiree health benefit at 20 years of service with mandatory
retirement at 25 years of service. Thareno age requirements to get retiree hieddenefits.
All OtherTown Employees COBRA coverageatretirement.

ForAll SchoolEmployeed Certified Teachers and certain Administrators positions are eligible for retiree
health benefits until Medicare eligibility once they meet tbrement eligibility requirments of Rhode
Island Employees Retirement System (Rl ERheabove benefit provisions reflect changes implemented
since the lasvaluation.

Continued
74



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 15 Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

As of June 30, 204, the planmembership data is as follows:

Inactive or
Beneficiaries
Active Receiving
Description Employees Benefits Total
Number 455 59 514

FundingPolicy

Contributionrequiremats arenegotiatedoetweenthe Town andthe respectiveunions. The Town is
required to contribute the cost of medical and dental benefits, less the amount appicable
employeeshareof medicalor dentalpremiums. For the fiscal year ended June 30120the Town
contributed $1948,878to the planwhichis 53.23% of theannualdetermined contributian

Summanyof SignificantAccountingPolicies

Basis of Accounting - The Other PostEmployment Benefits Trust Fund'sfinancial statementsare
preparedising the accrualbasisof accounting. Plan membercontributions ar@ecognizedn the period
in which the contributionsaredue. Employer contributionsarerecognizedwhen due andthe employer
hasmadeaformal commitmentto providethe contributions. Benefits and reinds arerecognized when
dueandpayablen accordanceavith thetermsof the plan.

Method Used to Value Investmentsnvestments are reported at fair val@ecurities tradecn national
or internationalexchangesarevalued at the last reported salesprice at currentexchange rates.

Investment policy
The Town's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the

committee by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the Town to parsue/estment strategy
that reduced risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct

asset classes. The followingwasthewTo6 s adopted asset all ®cation pol

Target

Asset Class Allocation

U.S. Equity 37.10%
Non-U.S. Equity 15.90%
U.S. Aggregate Bonds 12.00%
Intermediate-Term Credit 7.20%
Short-Term Credit 4.80%
Intermediate-Term TIPS 15.00%
REITs 8.00%

Total 100.00%
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Rate of Return:

For the year ended June 30, 201the annual moneweighted rate of return on investments, net of
investment expense wdsl1%. Themoneyweighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net
of investment expense, adjusted foe tthanging amounts actually invested.

Net OPEB Liability of the Town

Thecomponents of the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 309 2@&te as dllows:

Total OPEB liability $19,676,727
Plans fiduciary net position 6,074,153
Town's net OPEB liability $13,602,574

Plan net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability 30.87%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amandts
assumptions abouthe probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Exampietude
assumptionaboutfutureemploymentmortality,andthehealthcareostrend. Amountsdeterminedegarding
the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribufitine employerare subjedto continual
revisionasactualresultsarecomparedwith pastexpectation@andnewestimatesaremadeaboutthe future.
The scheduleof funding progresspresented aequiredsupplementarynformation following the notes to
the financial statements, presents multiyear trenfibrmation aboutwhether the actuarial value of plan
assetss increasingor decreasingovertime relative to theactuarial accrued liabilities fdrenefits.

Actuarial Methods anAssumptions

Projectionsof benefitsfor financial reporting purposesare basedon the substantiveplan (the plan as
understooddy the employerandtheplanmembersiandincludethetypesof benefitsprovidedatthe timeof
eachvaluation andhehistorical patternof sharingbeneft costsbetween themployerandplanmembergo
thatpoint. Theactuariaimethodsandassumptionsisedncludetechniqueshataredesigned to reduce shert
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial valuassetsconsistentith thelong-term
perspectiveof thecalculations.

The total OPEB liability wasletermined by an actuarial valuation as of June 309 28ing the following
actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement unless otherwise specified:
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued)

Notes to Required Supplementary Information:

Valuation Date: June 30, 2019 with no adjustments to get to June 30, 2019 measurement d
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal Level % of Salary method.

Asset-Valuation Method: Market Value.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6.75% as of June 30, 2019.

Medical inflation 8.00% decreasing 0.5% per year, to an ultimate rate of 5.00%.

Inflation: 2.50% per year.

Salary Increases: 3.50% annually as of June 30, 2019 and for future periods.

Mortality Healthy actives and retirees:

Police: SOA Pub-2010 Public Safety Headcount Weighted Mortality Table
fully generational using Scale MP-201¢€
School: SOA Pub-2010 Teachers Headcount weighted Mortality Table
fully generational using Scale MP-201¢
Disabled retirees:
Police only: SOA Pub-2010 Public Safety Disabled Headcount Weighted
Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2018

Assumed rate of retirement: School support staff
Retirement rates are based on the assumptions used in the Rl MERS actuar
valuation report as of June 30, 2018, which is a flat 20% per year retirement
probability for members eligible for unreduced retirement. A 35% retirement
probability at first eligibility will be applied if they have reached age 65 or witl
least 25 years of service.

School teachers and administration

Retirement rates are based on the assumptions used in the Rl ERS actuaria
valuation report as of June 30, 2016, which is a flat 25% per year retirement
probability for members eligible for unreduced retirement. A 60% retirement
probability at first eligibility will be applied if they have reached age 65 or witt
least 25 years of service.

Town police officers

Retirement rates are based on Town of Lincoln Police pension actuarial valt
as of January 1, 2019.

Marriage assumptions Spousal coverage and age for current retirees is based on actual data.
Active employees who currently elect spousal coverage are assumed to ele
spousal coverage at retirement. Husbands are assumed to be three years ¢
than wives.

Continued
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Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 15. Other Postempbyment Benefits (Continued)

The longterm expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a-biokckngethod

in which kestestimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense

andinflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produceettme long
expected rate of return by weighting thepested future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflatiBast estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class included in the target asset allocation as of June 83@&y@@umnarized in the following table:

Long-term

Expected Real

Asset Class Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 5.90%
Non-U.S. Equity 6.30%
U.S. Aggregate Bonds 1.60%
Intermediate-Term Credit 2.20%
Short-Term Credit 1.90%
Intermediate-Term TIPS 0.70%
REITs 4.70%

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB  Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability

Balance at June 30, 2018 $18,287,384 $ 4,944,103 $13,343,281
Service cost 490,133 - 490,133
Interest on net OPEB liability and service cost 1,226,993 - 1,226,993
Differences between actual and expected experience 1,415,712 - 1,415,712
Changes in assumptions (523,899) - (523,899)
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,219,596) (1,219,596) -

Administrative expenses - (14,222) 14,222

Contributions - employer - 1,948,878 (1,948,878,
Net investment income - 414,990 (414,990)
Net changes 1,389,343 1,130,050 259,293
Balances at June 30, 2019 $19,676,727 $ 6,074,153 $13,602,574

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liabilityowéaspercent. The projection of cash flows used

to determine the discount rate assumed that Town contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially

determined contribution rates. Base o n t hose

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the

assumptions,

the OPEB

long-term expected rate of return on OPERmpinvestments was applied to pkriods of projected benefit

payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Continued
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Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 15. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presets the net OPEB liability of he Town, as well as what
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that-pertentaggoint lower 6.75 percent) or 1
percentaggoint higher 7.75percent) than the current discouate:

Impact of 1% Change in Discount Rate

Current
1% Decrease discount rate 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Total OPEB liability 16,008,413 13,602,574 11,607,309

Sensitivity of the net OPEBdDbility to changes in thieealthcare cost trend rates

The following presents the net OPEB Il iability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates thatpareehtaggoint lower (7.0 percent
decreasindo 3.5 percent) or dpercentaggoint higher 9.0 percent decreasing &5 percent) than the current
healthcare cost trend rates:

Impact of 1% Change in Healthcare Trend Rate

1% Decrease  Current trend Current trend
(7.00% rate (8.00% rate (9.00%
decreasing tc decreasing to decreasing to
3.50%) 4.50%) 5.50%)
Total OPEB liability 11,455,633 13,602,574 16,212,169

OPEB expense and deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2@fhe Town recognized OPEBgense of $B50,875 At June 30, 204, the
Town reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
Differences between expected and $1,179,760 $(1,838,825;
actual experience
Changes in assumptions 1,272,062 (436,582)
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings in OPEB plan investments - (81,019)
2,451,822 (2,356,426
Total $ 95,396

Continued
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
Note 15 Other Postemployment Benefit{ Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recogOR&dB
expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ (23,859)
2021 (23,861)
2022 (963)
2023 (4,559)
2024 148,638
Total $ 95,396

Note 16. Risk Management
Rhode Islad Interlocal Risk Management Trudfc.:

The Town is exposed tarious risks ofossrelated tatorts; theft of, damage tand destructionf assets;
errorsor omissions;injuries to employees;and natural disasters As a result, the Townparticipatesin

a nonprofit, public entity risk pool (Rhode Island Interlocal Risk Managementrust, Inc.) (Trust)
which provides coveragefor property/liability claims. Upon joining the Trust,the Town signed a
participation agreementwhich outlines the rights and responsibilitiesof boththe Trust andthe Town.
The agreement states that for premiums paid by the Town, the Trust will assume financial
responsibilityfor the Town's lossesup to the maximum amountof insurancg@urchasedminusthe
Town's deductible amounts. The Trust provides this insurance coveragehrough a pooled, self
insurancemechanismwhich includes reinsurancepurchasedby the Trust to protect againstlarge,
catastrophic claims above the losses the Trust retains internally for paymentfrom the pooled
contributionsof its members.Under the participationagreementthe Town isinsured for a maximum
of $2,000,000per occurrence Settled claims resulting from these riskshave not exceeded the Trust
coverage in any of the pasiree fiscal years. There were significant reductions in insurance coverage
during the year endetline 30, 204.

Note 7. Commitment and Contingencies
Rhode Island Municipdhsurance Corporations

The Town is amember of the Rhode Island Municiplaisurance Corporation (RIMIC), aotfor- profit
organizationformedto jointly administerhealthcarerelatedmattersfor Rhodelsland citiesfowns, and other
governmental units that elect to participate. RIMI€otiates with qualifiegealthcarecompaies/third-party
administratorsto provide healthcarerelated administrativeservicesandto provide healthcarebenefitsand
claims servicesdirectly to membersfor themembers'employeesand retirees.RIMIC is governed by a
Boardof Directors(Board) thatconsists of one Board position from each municipality or agogernmental
unit that isa member.

Upon joining RIMIC, members execute member and adoption agreenidmgsdocumentpursuantto
which RIMIC was establishedandoperatesputlinestherights andresponsibilitiesof both the members
and RIMIC. Members of RIMIC participate in a heaitisuranceplan administeredhroughBlue Cross
BlueShieldof Rhoddsland(BCBSRI).

Continued
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Note to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Note 1I7. Commitment and Contingencies Continued):

Each member is solelsesponsible for separately and directly contracting with the qualified healthcare
provider/third party administrator chosen by RIMIC and for paying any and all healtietatedd claims
directly to the provider. In addition, each meamlis responsible fodetermining the types and levels of
selfinsured healthcare benefits offered, as well as the amount efoswipsurance deemed appropriate.

The Town purchases stdgpss insurance to cover claims in excess of $160,000. At 30n203B, the
incurred butot reported claims, as determined by RIMIC's health benefit advisors based on prior history,
were estimated to approximaté®2f,515 ($230,149 Town and 891,366 School) andare included in
accrued expenses of the governmentalisiels. The RIMIC agreenrd provides for an annual independent
audit of its financial statements. A copy of the latest audit report can be obtained by contacting RIMIC, c/o
Rodio & Ursillo, 86 Weybosset St., Providence, Rl 02903.

RIMIC members camvithdraw from the program effége June 30th of anyear provided they give a 90

day written notice of their intention to withdraw prior to June 30th. Failure to provide such notice
automatically results in a member's participation and membership in RtviED additional year.

Claims andjudgments:

The following matters have been asserted and are outstanding:

The Town is a party to various claims, legal actions emplaints. It is not presently possibl¢éo

determine the outcome of thesases; therefore, no liability has beewroreled inthe accompanying
financi al statement s. I n t h éownm$olicitor, thasematterscanhotbe T o wn 6
estimatednor canthe likelihood of afavorableoutcomebemade athis time.

Othercontingencies:

Amounts received oreceivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustigegtantor agencies,
principally the federal government.Any disallowed claims, including amountslreadycollected,may constitutea
liability of the applicablefunds. The amount, if any, ofexpenditureswhich may be disallowed by the grantor
cannotbe determinedat this time althoughthe Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Note 18. Tax abatements
TheTown has tax incentive financing agreements in place at year end

Owner Authority Parcel ID True Assessment Address TSA Payment  True Tax 12/31/17 Difference
Fleet National Bank RIGL 42-64-1  Lot49,Plat30 $ 8416,965 670 George Washington Highway $ 192580 $ 229,783 $ (37,203)

This agreement was signed Miay 29, 2017 andterminates on December 31,270 This agreement provides
for the annual tax liability to be calculate at a mil rate of $22.88 and an assessed v8|dé&B$Sor the
initial five yearsperiod andncreases each five years by 15%.

Continued
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June 30, 2019

Note 19. Restatement

Thegovernmental fund has been reclassified to separate the activities of School Special Revenue from
School Unrestricted:

Governmental Funds
School
School Special
Unrestricted Revenue

Beginning balance, July 1, 2018 $ 1692891 $ -
To reclassify Special Revenue activities from School

Unrestricted Funds (311,472) 311,472
Beginning balance, July 1, 2018, restated $ 1,381,419 $311,472

Note 20. Fund BalanceClassification

Major Funds Non-Major Funds
General School Town Special School Capital
Fund Unrestricted Revenue  Department Projects Total
Fund Balances

Nonspendable

Prepaid and inventory$ 487,352 $ -3 - 0% 5250 $ - $ 492,602
Restricted for

Grants - - 26,259 397,481 - 423,740
Committed to

Encumbrances 219,705 - - - - 219,705

School field project - - 201,119 - - 201,119
Assigned

Health care reserve 500,000 - - - - 500,000
Unassigned 6,105,778 (318,218) 282,790 (39,139)  (2,655,330) 3,375,881

$ 7312835 $ (318218) $ 510168 $ 363592 $ (2,655330) $ 5,213,047

Note 2. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the financial stasman], 2020.
No materialevents have occurred that require disclosures.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund BaBudget to Actual

General Fund

For the YeaEnded June 30, 2019

Original Budget

Encumbrances Budget Encumbrances  Variance
Carried into as Total Carriedinto Favorable
FY2019 Adopted Available Actual FY2020 (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Taxes $ - $55,610,416 $55,610,416 $55,655,076 $ - $ 44,660
Intergovernmental - 8,479,674 8,479,674 10,734,243 - 2,254,569
Local revenues - 2,197,225 2,197,225 3,046,248 - 849,023
Interest and investment income - 385,000 385,000 582,528 - 197,528
Total revenues - 66,672,315 66,672,315 70,018,095 - 3,345,780
Expenditures
General government 4,174 915,200 919,374 929,776 6,392 (16,794)
Financal administration 4,254 1,001,893 1,006,147 984,274 1,729 20,144
Public library 44,161 1,187,577 1,231,738 1,209,575 879 21,284
Public safety 28,295 6,770,290 6,798,585 6,997,209 8,483 (207,107)
Public service 285,200 5,441,299 5,726,499 7,375,918 202,222 (1,851,641
Municipal resolutions - 589,000 589,000 - - 589,000
Grants and contributions - 62,500 62,500 62,500 - -
Other expenditures - 5,024,814 5,024,814 5,357,306 - (332,492)
Debt Service:
Principal payments - 2,145,000 2,145,000 2,145,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges - 875,138 875,138 875,136 - 2
Total expenditures 366,084 24,012,711 24,378,795 25,936,694 219,705 (1,777,604
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (366,084) 42,659,604 42,293,520 44,081,401 (219,705) 5,123,384
Other financing sources and (uses)
Bond proceeds - - - 3,620,000 - 3,620,000
Bond premium - - - 342,847 - 342,847
Payment to escrow agent - - - (3,962,847) - (3,962,847
Transfers from other funds - 1,511,000 1,511,000 27,501 - (1,483,499
Transfers to other funds - (44,170,604) (44,170,604) (45,341,744) - (1,171,140
- (42,659,604) (42,659,604) (45,314,243) - (2,654,639
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures
and other uses, budgetary basis $ (366,084) $ - $ (366,084) $(1,232,842) $ (219,705) $ 2,468,745

Adjustment of budgetary basis to U.S. GAAP -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources

over expenditures and other uses, GAAP basis (1,232,842)
Fund balance, July 1, 2018 8,545,677
Fund balance, June 30, 2019 $ 7,312,835

See independent auditors' report amutes to required supplementary information
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund BaBudget to Actual

Required Supplementary Information

School Unrestricted

For the Year Endedune 30, 2019

Revenues
State aid for education
Medicaid
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues,
budgetary basis

Other financing sources (uses)
Appropriation from Town's general fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses,
budgetary basis

Adjustment of budgetary basis to U.S. GAAP basis

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses,
U.S. GAAP basis

Fund balance, July 1, 2018
Fund balance, June 30, 2019

See independent auditors' report amutes to required supplementary information

Original Budget

Emcumbrances Budget Encumbrances  Variance
Carried As Total Favorable
to FY 19 Adopted Available Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 11929334 $ 11929334 $ 12323166 $ $ 393,832
900,000 900,000 710,559 (189,441
- - 165,777 165,777
12,829,334 12,829,334 13,199,502 370,168
30,880,152 30,880,152 31,096,061 (215,909,
11,593,728 11,593,728 12,611,585 (1,017,857
10,456,764 10,456,764 11,340,718 (883,954,
1,483,939 1,483,939 1,359,994 123,945
- 69,141 69,141 67,246 1,895
19,268 131,877 151,145 209,802 (58,657)
19,268 54,615,601 54,634,869 56,685,406 (2,050,537
(19,268) (41,786,267)  (41,805,535) (43,485,904) (1,680,369
41,786,267 41,786,267 41,786,267
41,786,267 41,786,267 41,786,267
(19,268) $ - $  (19268) $  (1,699637) $ $ (1,680,369
(1,699,637)
1,381,419
S @i
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE 1: BudgetData and Budgetary Compliance

In accordance with the Town Charter, the Town Administrator must present to the Budget &8oard
recommended annual budget for the operations of all municipal departments no later than FelwlLaach5
fiscal year. The recommendedbudget must include an appropriationto fund schookxpenditures At least
three weeks after the receipt of the budgetfrom the Town Administrator, the BudgeBoard holds a public
hearing thereon.The Budget Board completesits considerationof thebudget thirty days prior to the date

of the financial town meeting. The financial town meeting mayincrease odecrease itemsf éhe budget as
presented by the Budget Board. The final recommended budggally adoptedat the annualfinancial town
meeting.All annualappropriationdapseatfiscal yearend.

The General Fund and the School Departnaamtual operating budgetseain conformity with the legally
enactedbudgetarybasis. The legally enactedbudgetarybasis differs from accounting principlesgenerally
acceptedin the United States(U.S. GAAP) in severalregards.Budgetsare adoptedon themodified accrual
basiswith certain exceptions.Budgetary revenuesnay include re-appropriationfom fund equity previously
recognized under U.S. GAAP. Budgetary expenditures and exmmesesognized when legally binding orders
(encumbrances) are placed. Enterprise fbbndgetay expensesnclude expensedor fixed assetadditions,
debt serviceissuancecostsand debtservicerincipal payments not recognized under U.S. GAAP but exclude
depreciation and amortizatiob.S. GAAP basisexpenses.

Costsof operationsfor all departnents, offices and agenciesestablishedwithin the Town Charter mustbe
appropriated through an annual budget ordinance. These departments are presented @eher#tfeund and
the School Department Municipal budgetary control is legally enforced at the department level.
Appropriation transfers between departmentsrequire approval by the Town Council.Other appropriation
increases require both the establishment of a funding sourcpasedge ofa budget amendment ordinance.
Unencumbered and unexpend@g@priations lapse at fiscal year- ended.

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Revenues and Other Financing Sources and Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses and GAAP Revenaed Other Financing Sources and Expenditures and Other Financing
Use
School
Unrestricted

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses $ (1,699,637

State contribution to teachers' pension plan revenue on behalf (2,556,945
State contribution to teacher's pension plan expense on behalf 2,556,945

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses (GAAP) $ (1,699,637

See independent auditors' report amutes to required supplementary information
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Other PosEmployment Benefits Net OPEB Liability and RelateRatios

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Total OPEB liability

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

Service cost $ 490,133 $ 486,994 $ 494,754
Interest 1,226,993 1,268,985 1,283,840
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,415,712 (1,172,388) (1,850,157,
Changes in assumptions (523,899) - 2,226,107
Benefit payments (1,219,596) (1,198,427) (727,240)
Net change in total OPEB liability 1,389,343 (614,836) 1,427,304
Total OPEB liability - beginning 18,287,384 18,902,220 17,474,916
Total OPEB liability - ending 19,676,727 18,287,384 18,902,220
OPEB fiduciary net position

Benefit payments (1,219,596) (1,198,427) (727,240)
Trust administrative expenses (14,222) (10,350) (9,932)
Contributions - employer 1,948,878 1,804,537 1,534,402
Net investment income 414,990 276,633 362,250
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,130,050 872,393 1,159,480
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 4,944,103 4,071,710 2,912,230
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 6,074,153 4,944,103 4,071,710
Plan's net pension liability - ending $ 13602574 $13,343,281 $ 14,830,510
Actuarial Fiduciary Total OPEB Net OPEB NOL as a%
Valuation Net Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered

Date Position (TOL) (NOL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

6/30/2019 $6,074,153 $19,676,727 $13,602,574 30.87% $33,645,972 40.43%
6/30/2018 $4,944,103 $18,287,384 $13,343,281 27.04% $32,927,613 40.52%
6/30/2017 $4,071,710 $18,902,220 $14,830,510 21.54% $31,814,119 46.62%

*Third year of inplementation of GASB74/75, therefor only three years of the ten required datalable

See independent auditors' report amutes to required supplementary information
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Other PosEmployment Benefits Schedule of Contributions

Last 10 Years

June 30,2019 June 30,2018 June 30,2017 June 30,2016 June 30,2015 June 30,2014 June 30,2013

June 30,2012 June 30,2011 June 30, 201(

Actuarial determined contribution  $ 1,271,875 $ 1333965 $ 1,352,133 $ 1322413 $ 1343607 $ 1384923 $ 1,430,251
Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution 1,948,878 1,804,537 1,534,402 1,170,316 1,349,652 1,407,376 1,647,621

$ 2,170,685 $ 2181418 $ 1,992,852

762,617 1,007,394 885,332

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (677,003) $ (470572) $ (182,269) $ 152097 $ (6,045 $ (22453) $ (217,370)

$ 1,408,068 § 1,174,024 $ 1,107,520

Covered-employee payroll $33,645972  $32927,613 $31,814,119 $31,685123 $30,610535 $30,793,333 $29,752,013

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 5.79% 5.48% 4.82% 3.69% 4.41% 4.57% 5.54%

**Actuarial determined contributions are based on the Annual Required Contributions calculated

unavailable  $26,745543  $24,943 572

unavailable 3.77% 3.55%

in the prior GASB45 actuarial valuations.
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Reguired Supplementary Information
Other PosEmployment Benefits Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Last 10 Years*

June 30, 2019 June 30,2018 June 30, 2017

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 4.11% 6.79% 12.43%

* Third year of implementation of GASB 74/75, therefore only three years of the ten required data is

Notes to Required Supplementary Information:

Valuation Date: June 30, 2019 with no adjustments to get to June 30, 2019 measurement d
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal Level % of Salary method.

Asset-Valuation Method: Market Value.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6.75% as of June 30, 2019.

Medical inflation 8.00% decreasing 0.5% per year, to an ultimate rate of 5.00%.

Inflation: 2.50% per year.

Salary Increases: 3.50% annually as of June 30, 2019 and for future periods.

Mortality Healthy actives and retirees:

Police: SOA Pub-2010 Public Safety Headcount Weighted Mortality Table
fully generational using Scale MP-201¢
School: SOA Pub-2010 Teachers Headcount weighted Mortality Table
fully generational using Scale MP-201¢
Disabled retirees:
Police only: SOA Pub-2010 Public Safety Disabled Headcount Weighted
Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2018

Assumed rate of retirement: School support staff
Retirement rates are based on the assumptions used in the RI MERS actuai
valuation report as of June 30, 2018, which is a flat 20% per year retirement
probability for members eligible for unreduced retirement. A 35% retiremeni
probability at first eligibility will be applied if they have reached age 65 or witl
least 25 years of service.

School teachers and administration

Retirement rates are based on the assumptions used in the Rl ERS actuaria
valuation report as of June 30, 2016, which is a flat 25% per year retirement
probability for members eligible for unreduced retirement. A 60% retiremeni
probability at first eligibility will be applied if they have reached age 65 or witl
least 25 years of service.

Town police officers

Retirement rates are based on Town of Lincoln Police pension actuarial val
as of January 1, 2019.

Marriage assumptions Spousal coverage and age for current retirees is based on actual data.
Active employees who currently elect spousal coverage are assumed to ele
spousal coverage at retirement. Husbands are assumed to be three years ¢
than wives.
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Employees' Retirement System

Schedule of the Town's Progtionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Last 10 Years*

2019

2018 2017

2016

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability $45,182,730

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated witt

142207116% 1.43163923% 1.52732535%

$45,057,871  $45,568,936

1.52994437% 1637914729

$42,119410  $39,866,851

34052925 31208030 28,774,659

27,338,536

$79,110,796  $76,776,966

$70,894,069  $67,205,387

school district 33,703,071
Total $78,885,801
Employer's covered employee payroll $25,416,949

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 310.37%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 54.30%
Notes:

$24,703 975  $24,449,295

320.24% 314.03%

54.00% 54.06%

$24,308,607  $24,062,206

1.) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30 measurement date prior to the fiscal year-end.

2.) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years will be displayed as they become available.

3.) Employers participating in the State Employeeds

actuarially determined contribution rate each year.

Retireme

173.27%

57.55%

165.68%

61.40%
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Required Supplementary Information

Employees' Retirement System

Schedule of Contributions

Last 10 Years*

Actuarially determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered- employee payroll

Notes:

2019 2018 2017 2016

2015

$ 3456070 §$3475182 $3,340370 $ 3445181

3,456,070 3,475,182 3,340,370 3,445,181

$ 3,286,406

3,286,406

$25,416,949  $24,703,975 $24,449,295  $24,308,607

13.60% 14.07% 13.66% 14.17%

1.) Employers participating in the State Employee's Retirement System are required by RI General Laws, Section 36-10-2, to contribt

actuarially determined contribution rate each year.

2.) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years will be displayed as they become available.

$24,062,206

13.66%
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Municipal Employees' Retirement System
Schedule of Changes in the Townds Net Pensi
General Employee Plan

Last 10 Years*

Year Ended  YearEnded  YearEnded  YearEnded  Year Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
A. Total pension liability

1. Senvice Cost $ 103895 $ 97917 $ 92977 § 90,123 $ 84,067
2. Interest on the total pension liability 200,726 197,823 184,662 159,472 151,700
3. Changes of benefit terms - - - 2,927
4. Difference between expected and actual experience

of the Total Pension Liability (44,870) (110,743) 1,134 186,180
5. Changes of assumptions - 146,156 - - (32,372)
6. Benefit payments, including refunds

of employee contributions (102,764) (105,764) (105,764) (102,767) (102,825)
7. Net change in total pension liability 156,987 225,389 173,009 335,935 100,570

8. Total pension liability 7 be&g66946i n®641557 2468548 2132613 2,032,043

9. Total pension liability 7 8023838 ($£2)866946 $2641557 $2468548 §2132,613
B. Plan fiduciary net position

1. Contributions i employer $ 130511 $ 129264 $ 128161 & 128464 $ 102,118

2. Contributions i employee 11,546 10,772 10,092 9,882 9,159
3. Net investment income 187,052 231,038 (386) 45,319 247,030
4. Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions ~ (102,764) (105,764) (105,764) (102,767) (102,825)
5. Pension Plan Administrative Expense (2,490) (2,183) (2,070 (1,817) (1,547)
6. Other 100,330 (4,893) (46,510) 1 212,009
7. Net change in plan fiduciary net position 324,185 258,234 (16,477) 79,082 465,944

8. Plan fiduciary net position?2l75pRgi 10817838 1933815 1854733 1,388,789
9. Plan fiduciary net positioB2%99857di$nRdr561) $1917338 $1933815 § 1,854,733

C. Net pension liahility - ending (a) - (h) $ 524176 $ 691374 § 724219 $ 534733 $ 277880
D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension i 82.67% 75.88% 72.58% 78.34% 86.97%
E. Covered employee payroll $1,060,156 $1,077,196 $1006,242 $ 988187 $ 927,888
F. Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 49.44% 64.18% 71.97% 54.11% 29.95%
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Informati
Municipal Employees' Retirement System
Schedule of Contributions
General Employee Plan

Last 10 Years

Fiscal 2019  Fiscal 2018  Fiscal 2017  Fiscal 2016  Fiscal 2015
Actuarially determined contribution $ 97456 $ 130511 $ 129264 § 128,161 $ 128464
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 97,456 130,511 129,264 128,161 128,464
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ $ $
Covered-employee payroll $1,107,863 $1,060,156 $1,077,196 $1,006242 $ 988,187
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 8.80% 12.31% 12.00% 12.74% 13.00%
Notes:

1) Employers participating in the Municipal Employee’s Retirement System are required by RI General Laws, Sei
21-42, to contribute an actuarially determined contribution rate each year.

2.) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years will be displayed as they become avi
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information
Municipal Employees' Retirement System
Schedule of Changes in the NenhBien Liability and Related Ratios
Rescue Employee Plan

Last 10 Years

YearEnded YearEnded YearEnded YearEnded Year Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
A Total pension liability
1. Service Cost $ 171482 $ 170422 $ 168655 $ 148,381 § 148,084
2. Interest on the total pension liahility 414,749 370,389 358,289 321,600 302,186
3. Changes of benefit terms - - - 199,797
4, Difference between expected and actual experience
of the total pension liability (238,456) 263,444 (187,182) (32,356)
5. Changes of assumptions - 428,763 (39,710)
6. Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (300,304)  (193,838)  (164,793)  (151,960)  (151,747)
7. Net change in total pension liability 47471 1,039,180 174,969 485,462 258,813
8. Total pension liability i be§080402ng4950222 4775253 4289791 4,030,978
9. Total pension liability 7 e66036873( 85989402 $4950222 $4775253 $4.289,791
B. Plan fiduciary net position
1. Contributions i employer $ 152,968 $ 175174 $ 172028 $ 179605 $ 144073
2. Contributions i employee 87,109 94,281 94,536 71,166 73,213
3. Net investment income 291,985 390,188 (1,181) 77451 417,750
4. Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (300,304)  (193,838)  (164,793)  (151,960)  (151,747)
5. Pension Plan Administrative Expense (3,887) (3,686) (3,177) (3,105) (2,616)
6. Other - (190,244) - (4,765)
7. Net change in plan fiduciary net position 227871 271875 97,413 168,392 480,733
8. Plan fiduciary net position B67H2§i n3408382 3304919 3136527 2,655,794
9. Plan fiduciary net position$B902067di §867420] §$3402332 §3304919 §3.136527
C. Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $2,134795 $2315195 $1547890 $1470334 $1,153264
D. Planfiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liat 64.64% 61.35% 68.73% 69.21% 73.12%
E. Covered employee payroll $ 853,146 $ 960,666 $ 952317 $ 889575 $ 898567
F. Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 250.23% 241.00% 162.54% 165.28% 128.34%
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information
Municipal Employees' Retirement System
Schedule of Contributions
Rescue Employee Plan

Last 10 Years

Fiscal 2019  Fiscal 2018  Fiscal 2017  Fiscal 2016  Fiscal 2015
Actuarially determined contribution $ 169,008 $ 152968 $ 175174 $ 172,028 $ 179,605

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 169,008 152,968 175,174 172,028 179,605

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - 3 - 3

Covered-employee payroll $ 891538 § 853146 $ 960,666 $ 952317 $ 889,575

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 18.96% 17.93% 18.23% 18.06% 20.19%
Notes:

1.) Employers participating in the Municipal Employee's Retirement System are required by RI General Laws, Sectic
42, to contribute an actuarially determined contribution rate each year.

2.) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years will be displayed as they become availe
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information

Teachers' Survivors

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Penasset

Last 10 Years

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Employer's proportion of the net pension asset 4.71249896% 4.67075334% 4.78468663% 4.90497735% 4.97709490%
Employer's proportionate share of the net pensionasset ~ $ 4,204,930 $ 3,863,946 $ 4,764,203 $ 4,579,071 $ 6,187,561
Employer's covered employee payroll $25,416,949 $24,703,975 $24,449,295 $24,308,607 $24,062,206

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension asset
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 16.54% 15.64% 19.49% 18.84% 25.71%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total per
liability (asset) 136.1% 136.1% 153.3% 146.6% 173.3%

Notes:
1.) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30 measurement date prior to the fiscal year-end

2.) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Required Supplementary Information
Teacher's SurvivorBenefit Plan

Schedule of Contributions

Last 10 Years

Statutorily determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the statutorily
determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll

Notes:

2019 2018 2017 2016

2015

$ 33479 $ 35063 $ 27552 $ 30,731

33,479 35,063 27,552 30,731

$ 28,406

28,406

$25,416,949  $24,703,975 $24,449,295 $24,308,607

0.13% 0.14% 0.11% 0.13%

1.) Employers participating in the Teachers' Survivor's Benefit Plan contribute at a rate established by the Rl General La

2.) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years will be displayed as they become available.

$24,062,206

0.12%
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to ERS, MERS, and TSB Plans

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

The amounts presented for each fiscal year wetermined as of the June 30 measurement date prior to the
fiscal year end.

The schedules are intended to showiinmfation for 10 years additional years will be displayed as they become
available.

Empl oyers participat i ng ert8ystégmhaee re§uired bhyeRl Gemgrdl laaywse $edtisn R e
36-10-2, to contribute an actuarially determined contributete each year.

Empl oyers participating in the Municipal Empl oyeed
Section 4521-42, to ontribute an actuarially determined contribution rate each year.

Empl oyers partici pat isBenefit Rlan tohtributeTat aratd established ByuRl @einerab r
Laws, Section 14.6-35.

June 30, 2018 measurement ddte

There were no changes in actuarial methods or assumptions reflected in the calculation of the net pension
liability (asset) of the pins as of the June 30, 2018 measurement date compared to the June 30, 2017
measurement date.

June 30, 2017 measurement @&

As part of the 2017 Actuarial Experience Investigation Study for thgesk period ending June 30, 2016 as
approved by the y&tem Board on May 15, 2017, certain assumptions were modified and reflected in the
determination of the net pension lidlyil (asset) at the June 30, 2017 measurement date. The following
summarizes the more significant changes in assumptions:

1 Decreasethe general inflation assumption from 2.75% to 2.50%;
9 Decreased the nominal investment return assumption from 7.509084;7

91 Decreased the general wage growth assumption from 3.25% to 3.00%;
1 Decreased salaigyicreasesassumptions; and

1 Updated tke postretirement mortality tables to variants of the-BF14 table. For the improvement
scale, update to the ultimate rates of the 20R6 projection scale.

June 30, 2016 measurement dé&te
There were no changes in actuarial methods or assumptibertee in the calculation of the net pension

liability (asset) of the plans as of the June 30, 2016 measurement date compared to the June 30, 2015
measurement date.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to ERS, MERS, and TSB Plans

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

June 30, 2015 measurement ted

There were no changes in actuarial methods or asseumapteflected in the calculation of the net pension
liability (asset) of the plans as of the June 30, 2015 measurement date compared to the June 30, 2014
measurement date

The June 30, 2015 meaement date determination of the net pension liabilityther ERS and MERS plans
reflects changes in benefit changes resulting from the settlement of litigation challenging the various pension
reform measures enacted in previous years by the Generahbdlgse The final settlement approved by the
Court on July 82015 also included enactment of the pension settlement provisions by the General Assembly.
These amended benefit provisions, are summarized below:

1 Employees with more than 20 years of seratduly 1, 2012 will increase their employee contribution
rates to 11% for state employees and municipal general employees will contribute 8.25% (9.25% for
units with a COLA provision) and participate solely in the defined benefit plan going forvemmdice
credit accruals will increase from 1% to 2% per year.

1 Members are eligible to retire upon the attainmenagé& 65 with 30 years of service, 64 with 31 years
of service, 63 with 32 years of service, or 62 with 33 years of service. Members magadiae if
their RIRSA date is earlier or are eligible unddransition rule.

1 MERS public safety employees may retire at age 50 with 25 years of service, or any age with 27 years
of service. MERS public safety employees will contribute 9.00% (10.@0%urfits with a COLA
provision)

1 Employees with more than Hut less than 20 years of service at July 1, 2012 will receive an increased
employer contribution to the defined contribution plan. Also, members who earn less than $35,000 per
year will not berequired to pay the administrative fees to the defined ibortitsn plan.

1 Members who retired from a COLA eligible plan before July 1, 2012 will received-timaeost of
living adjustment of 2% of the first $25,000 paid as soon as administrativelplposs

1 Retirees as of June 30, 2015 will receive two $5@Qtests; the interim cost of living increases will
occur at 4 year rather than 5 year intervals.

1 The COLA formula was adjusted t60% of the COLA is calculated by taking the previouge&r
averge investment return, less 5.5% (5yr Retufn5%, with amax of 4%) and0% calculated using
pr evi ous -Uymazr of 86 forGRotal max COLA of 3.5%. This COLA is calculated on the first
$25,855, effective 01/01/16, and indexed as of that datelhs(The indexing formula is run annually
regardless of fuding level each year.)

1 Minor adjustments were made to the actuarial reduction for employees choosing to retire early
Teacher sd Sur viivtoeremploiee ang emptoyerPcbntribution rates were applied to the first
$11,500 of member salary foiscal 2018. In fiscal 2017 and prior the rate was applied to salary up to $9,600.

Covered employee payroll is the full amount of employee payroll for mlambers and not just the capped
salary amount to which the contribution rate is applied.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Required Supplem@ry Information

Town Pension Plan

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

Last 10Years*

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

June 30, 201¢

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 868,930 $ 809,348 $ 792,134 $ 763,850 $ 599,159 $ 605377
Interest 2,284,042 2,450,033 2,482,561 2,498,226 1,956,043 2,111,291
Changes of benefit terms - (3,977) - (26,249) - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 12,667 (92,415) 167,575 (505,472) (258,433) 77,724
Changes of assumptions 1,397,980 (58,519) (118,482) (18,060) 5,028,770 312,459
Benefit payments, including refunds of participant contributions (1,744,221) (1,654,290) (1,592,331) (1,592,333) (1,606,958) (1,446,432
Net change in total pension liability 2,819,398 1,450,180 1,731,457 1,119,962 5,718,581 1,660,419
Total pension liability - beginning 38,650,834 37,200,654 35,469,197 34,349,235 28,630,654 26,970,235
Total pension liability - ending $41,470,232 $38,650,834 $37,200,654 $ 35,469,197 $34,349,235 $28,630,654
Pension fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $ 1,778,969 $ 1,700,406 $ 1,522,833 $ 1,289,255 $ 1,151,809 $ 1,146,450
Contributions - employee 333,249 312,334 312,264 290,824 273,935 277,602
Net investment income 1,916,596 1,956,480 2,248,866 642,654 302,238 2,760,209
Benefit payments, including refunds of participant contributions (1,744,221) (1,654,290) (1,592,331) (1,592,333) (1,606,958) (1,446,432
Other - - - - - -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,284,593 2,314,930 2,491,632 630,400 121,024 2,737,829
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 24,967,871 22,617,053 20,587,995 19,957,595 19,836,571 17,098,742
Plan fiduciary net position - ending $27,252,464 $24,967,871 $23,079,627 $ 20,587,995 $19,957,595 $19,836,571
Town's net pension liability - ending $14,217,768 $13,682,963 $14,121,027 $14,881,202 $14,391,640 $ 8,794,083

*Schedule is intended to shamformation for 10 yeaf additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information
Town Pension Plan
Schedule of Changes in Net Pendigability and Related Ratios

Last 10 Years*

June 30,2019 June 30,2018 June 30,2017 June 30,2016 June 30,2015 June 30, 201¢

Total pension liability $41,470,232  $38,650,834 $37,200,654 $35469,197 $34,349,235 $28,630,654
Plan fiduciary net position 27,252,464 24967871 23,079,627 20587995 19957595 19,836,571
Town's net pension liability (asset) $14,217768 $13,682,963 $14,121,027 $14,881202 $14,391,640 $ 8,794,083
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability 65.72% 64.60% 62.04% 58.04% 58.10% 69.28%
Covered-employee payroll $ 5453717  § 5450472 $ 5323702 §$ 5142178 $ 5073432 $ 5139367
Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of covered-employee payroll 260.70% 251.04% 265.25% 289.39% 283.67% 171.11%

*Schedule is intended to show information for 10 yeadditional years will be displayed as they become
available.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information
Town Pension Plan
Schedule of Contributions

Last 10 Years*

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Actuarially determined contribution  $1,729,370 $1,700,406 $1,522,833 $1,374,183 $1,227,757 $1,222,045 $1,086,389 $ 644,463 $ 644,615 $ 618,012
Contributions in relation to the

actuarially determined contribution 1,729,370 1,700,406 1522833 1,393,880 1,227,757 1,222,045 1,226,051 513,931 736,776 479,429
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $ - 3 - 3 - $ (19697) $ - 3 - $(139,662) $ 130,532 $ (92,161) $ 138,583
Covered-employee payroll $5,425,686 $5,275,079 $4,868,352 $5,073,432 $5,139,367 $5,068,754 $4,916,103 $4,988,272 $5414,398 $4,943,482
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 31.87% 32.23% 31.28% 27.47% 23.89% 24.11% 24.94% 10.30% 13.61% 9.70%

*Schedule is intended to shamformation for 10 yeai additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information
Town Pension Rn
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Last 10Years*

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Town's proportion of the net pension

liability (asset) 93.67% 93.81% 94.67% 94.59% 93.81% 93.81%
Town's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) $14,217,768 $13,682,963 $14,121,027 $14,881,202 $14,391,640 $8,794,083
Town's covered-employee payroll $ 5,453,717 $ 5,450,472 $ 5,323,702 $ 5,142,178 $ 5,073,432 $5,139,367
Town's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 260.70% 251.04% 265.25% 289.39% 283.67% 171.11%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 65.72% 64.60% 62.04% 58.04% 58.10% 69.28%

*Schedule is intended &how information for 10 yedradditional years wilbe displayed as they become available.
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
Required Supplementary Information
Town Pension Plan
Schedule of Investment Returns and Notes

Last 10 Years*

June 30,2019 June 30,2018 June 30,2017 June 30,2016 June 30,2015 June 30, 2014

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 7.58% 8.56% 10.92% 3.30% 4.65% 16.60%

Notes to the Schedule:
Valuation Date:

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, 2019.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Discount rate 7.00%
Expected Long Term Rate of Return 7.00%
Municipal bond N/A

Inflation 2.10%

Pre and post retirement mortality Police and Fire - RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality with fully
generational improvements from 2006 based on assumptions
from the 2018 Social Security Trustee's Report
Other and Beneficiaries - RP-2014 Total Mortality with fully
generational improvements from 2006 based on assumptions
from the 2018 Social Security Trustee's Report

Withdrawal T-2. lllustrative annual rates of withdrawals as follows:
Age Male Female
<25 5% - 10% 7.5% - 15%
30 3.5% - 7% 5% - 10%
35 2.5% - 5% 3.5% - 7%
40 1.5% - 3% 2.5% - 5%
45 1% - 2% 1.5% - 3%
50 .50% - 1% 1% - 2%
55 00% - 00% .50% - 1%
60 00% - 00% 00% - 00Y

Cost of living increases 3.00% increase is assumed for Police retiring after June 30, 2004.

Officers hired after July 1, 2015 will receive a 3.00% compounded Ci
capped 18 years after the date of retirement. This assumption is bast¢
on terms of the collective bargaining agreement.

Changes since prior report The mortality table used to measure funding liabilites have been chan
from using fully generational improvement scale based on assumptio
from the 2017 Trustees' Report to the improvement scale based on
assumptions from the 2018 Trustees' Report. The respective mortali
tables (RP-2017 Blue Collar and Rp-2014 Total) and the year in whic
improvements began (2006) remain the same. This change resulted |
decrease in liability and normal cost.

*Schedule is intended to show information for 10 yieadditional years will be displayed as they become
available.
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TOWN OF LIN COLN, RHODE ISLAND

Supplementary Information

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combined Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019

Total
Town School Non-Major
Special Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Revenue Projects Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $137,474 $ 109,580 $ 7,106,000 $ 7,353,054
Investments - - 9,377,274 9,377,274
Prepaid - 5,250 - 5,250
Due from other governments - 1,057,995 - 1,057,995
Due from other funds 390,910 685,685 8,426,877 9,503,472
Total assets 528,384 1,858,510 24,910,151 27,297,045
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows - - - -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 528,384 1,858,510 24,910,151 27,297,045
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 375 630,626 - 631,001
BAN payable - - 25,000,000 25,000,000
Due to other funds 12,355 864,292 2,565,481 3,442,128
12,730 1,494,918 27,565,481 29,073,129
Deferred inflows of resources
Unearned revenue 5,486 - - 5,486
Total deferred inflows of resources 5,486 - - 5,486
Fund balance
Nonspendable - 5,250 - 5,250
Restricted 26,259 397,481 - 423,740
Committed 201,119 - - 201,119
Unassigned 282,790 (39,139) (2,655,330) (2,411,679
Total fund balance 510,168 363,592 (2,655,330) (1,781,570
Town liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and
fund balances $528,384  $1,858,510 $24,910,151 $ 27,297,045

Seeindependent auditors' report
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combined Sttement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes thBalance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Revenues
Federal and state grant income
Other revenue
Investment income

Total revenue

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Public services
Education

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Premium on BAN

Total other financing sources (uses) -
Excess of revenue and other sources over

expenditures and other uses
Fund balance, July 1, 2018

Fund balance, June 30, 2019

Total

Town School Non-Major

Special Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Revenue Projects Funds

$148,212 $2,634,737 $ - $ 2,782,949
157,583 1,982 209,189 368,754
14 - 325,366 325,380
305,809 2,636,719 534,555 3,477,083
7,938 - 7,938
23,037 - 188,637 211,674
235,116 2,584,599 414,721 3,234,436
- - 11,168,727 11,168,727
266,091 2,584,599 11,772,085 14,622,775
39,718 52,120  (11,237,530) (11,145,692
- - 3,655,477 3,655,477
- - 917,750 917,750
- 4,473,227 4,473,227
39,718 52,120 (6,764,303) (6,672,465
470,450 311,472 4,108,973 4,890,895
$510,168 $ 363,592  $(2,655,330) $ (1,781,570,

Seeindependent auditors' report
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Balance ShektfTown Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

Partnership for
Success

DCF Grant

Substance Abuse

CDBG

Rental
Rehab

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $

Due from other funds 5,000

$ -

$ -

$11,829
28,932

$12,106

Total assets 5,000

40,761

12,106

Deferred Outflows of Resources
None -

Total outflows of resources and assets 5,000

40,761

12,106

Liabilities
Due to other funds -
Other -
Unearned revenue -

8,700

Total liabilities -

8,700

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows -

Total deferred inflows of resources -

Fund Balances
Restricted -
Committed -
Unassigned 5,000

(8,700)

40,761

12,106

Total fund balances (deficits) 5,000

(8,700)

40,761

12,106

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,

and fund balances (deficits) $ 5,000

$ -

$40,761

$12,106

Seeindependent auditors' report

108



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Balance ShektfTown Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
None

Total outflows of resources and assets

Liabilities
Due to other funds
Other
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
None

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund Balances
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,

and fund balances (deficits)

MHRH Animal Child Friends of Holiday
Underage Care Seatbelt Whiteman Basket
$ - $ - $ - $ 17,485 $42,916

114 64,541 387 -
114 64,541 387 17,485 42,916
114 64,541 387 17,485 42,916
- 40 - - -
- 40 - - -
114 64,501 387 17,485 42,916
114 64,501 387 17,485 42,916
$ 114 $64,541 $ 387 $ 17,485 $42,916

Seeindependent auditors' report

109



TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance ShektfTown Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

Lincoln Memorial Day Police Vest Police Senior Center H1NL1 Clinic
Days Parade Grant Forfeiture Donations Grant
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $6,503 $ 23,309 $ - $ 12,567 $ - $ -
Due from other funds - - 1,809 2,544 67,234 8,855
Total assets 6,503 23,309 1,809 15,111 67,234 8,855
Deferred Outflows of Resources
None - - - - - -
Total outflows of resources and assets 6,503 23,309 1,809 15,111 67,234 8,855
Liabilities
Due to other funds - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -
Unearned revenue - - 1,222 - - -
Total liabilities - - 1,222 - - -
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Uneraned revenue - - - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - - -
Fund Balances
Restricted - - 587 15,111 - 8,855
Committed - - - - - -
Unassigned 6,503 23,309 - - 67,234 -
Total fund balances (deficits) 6,503 23,309 587 15,111 67,234 8,855
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances (deficits) $6,503 $ 23,309 $ 1,809 $ 15,111 $ 67,234 $ 8,855
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance ShektfTown Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

Fed Drug Rescue Grants BYRNE
Forfeiture and Donations MEDS JAG 2009

Hearthside
Building

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18 $ - $ - $ -
Due from other funds - 2,456 25,391 -

$ 6,593

Total assets 18 2,456 25,391 -

6,593

Deferred Outflows of Resources
None - - - -

Total outflows of resources and assets 18 2,456 25,391 -

6,593

Liabilities
Due to other funds - - - 350
Other - - - _
Unearned revenue - - 4,264 _

Total liabilities - - 4,264 350

Deferred Inflows of Resources
None - - - -

Total deferred inflows of resources - - - -

Fund Balances
Restricted - - - -
Committed - - 21,127 (350)
Unassigned 18 2,456 - -

6,593

Total fund balances (deficits) 18 2,456 21,127 (350)

6,593

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances (deficits) $ 18 $ 2,456 $25,391 $ -

$ 6,593
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance ShektfTown Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

Senior Operation  Town Clerk Historical Senior Center
Center Riptide Technician Records Programs Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $4148 $ - $ - $ - $ - $137,474
Due from other funds - - 134,758 48,889 - 390,910
Total assets 4,148 - 134,758 48,889 - 528,384
Deferred Outflows of Resources
None - - - - - -
Total outflows of resources and assets 4,148 - 134,758 48,889 - 528,384
Liabilities
Due to other funds - 2,592 - - 713 12,355
Other 335 - - - - 375
Unearned revenue - - - - - 5,486
Total liabilities 335 2,592 - - 713 18,216
Deferred Inflows of Resources
None - - - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - - -
Fund Balances
Restricted 3,813 - - - - 26,259
Committed - (2,592) 134,758 48,889 (713) 201,119
Unassigned - - - - - 282,790
Total fund balances (deficits) 3,813 (2,592) 134,758 48,889 (713) 510,168
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances (deficits) $4,148 3 - $ 134,758 3 48,889 % - $528,384
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes iBdlamtei Town Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Partnership for Rental
Success DCF Grant  Substance Abuse = CDBG Rehab
Revenues
Grant Revenue $ 7,181 $113,347 $ 3,881 $ - $ -
Other revenue 5,000 - - - -
Total revenues 12,181 113,347 3,881 - -
Expenditures
General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Public service 24 119,245 - - 81
Total expenditures 24 119,245 - - 81
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under)
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 12,157 (5,898) 3,881 - (81)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers (to) other funds - - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over (under) expenditures
and other uses 12,157 (5,898) 3,881 - (81)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 (7,157) (2,802) (3,881) 40,761 12,187
Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 5,000 $ (8,700) % - $40,761 $12,106
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes iBdlamtei Town Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

MHRH Animal Child Friends of Holiday
Underage Care Seatbelt  Whiteman Basket
Revenues
Grant Revenue $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Other revenue - 12,500 774 346 20,624
Total revenues - 12,500 774 346 20,624
Expenditures
General government - - - - -
Public safety - 256 - - -
Public service - - - 820 11,252
Total expenditures - 256 - 820 11,252
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under)
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) - 12,244 774 474) 9,372
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds - - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over (under) expenditures
and other uses - 12,244 774 474) 9,372
Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 114 52,257 (387) 17,959 33,544
Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 114 $64,501 $ 387 $ 17,485 $42,916
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes iBdlamtei Town Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Lincoln  Memorial Day Police Vest  Police Senior Center  H1N1 Clinic

Days Parade Grant Forfeiture Donations Grant
Revenues
Grant Revenue $ - $ - $ 2400 $ 9224 3 - $
Other revenue 2,245 21,269 - - 10,000
Total revenues 2,245 21,269 2,400 9,224 10,000
Expenditures
General government - - - -
Public safety - - - -
Public service 6,405 16,593 2,860 16,248
Total expenditures 6,405 16,593 2,860 16,248
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under)
expenditures before other financing sources (us€¢4)160) 4,676 (460) (7,024) 10,000
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over (under) expenditures
and other uses (4,160) 4,676 (460) (7,024) 10,000
Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 10,663 18,633 1,047 22,135 57,234 8,855
Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $6,503 % 23,309 % 587 $15111 $ 67,234 $ 8,855
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes iBdlamtei Town Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Fed Drug
Forfeiture

Rescue Grants
and Donations

MEDS

BYRNE

JAG 2009

Hearthside

Building

Revenues
Grant Revenue $
Other revenue

$ -

$ 3,000

$ -
12,455

$ -
14

Total revenues

3,000

12,455

14

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Public service

1,000

12,455

Total expenditures

1,000

12,455

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under)
expenditures before other financing sources (uses)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds

(1,000)

3,000

14

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over (under) expenditures
and other uses

Fund Balance, July 1, 2018

18

(1,000)

3,456

3,000

18,127

(350)

14

6,579

Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $

18

$ 2,456

$21,127

$ (350)

$ 6,593
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes iBdlamtei Town Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Senior  Operation  Town Clerk Historical Senior Center
Center Riptide Technician Records Programs Total

Revenues

Grant Revenue $ - $ 9179 % - - 3 - $148212

Other revenue 30,226 - 18,960 3,209 19,975 157,597

Total revenues 30,226 9,179 18,960 3,209 19,975 305,809

Expenditures

General government - 7,938 7,938

Public safety - 9,326 - - 23,037

Public senvice 42,415 - 19,173 235,116

Total expenditures 42,415 9,326 7,938 19,173 266,091

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under)

expenditures before other financing sources (us€k2,189) (147) 11,022 3,209 802 39,718
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers from (to) other funds
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

other sources over (under) expenditures

and other uses (12,189) (147) 11,022 3,209 802 39,718
Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 16,002 (2,445) 123,736 45,680 (1,515) 470,450
Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $3813 $ (2,592) $ 134,758 483889 $ (713)  $510,168
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance SheetSchool Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

SPED SPED SPED Title | Part A Title | Title llI
IDEA IDEA Part B IDEA Disadvantaged Part A Language
Part B Support Preschool Youth Teacher Quality Acquisition
Assets
Cash $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Prepaid - - - - - 5,250
Due from other funds - - - - - -
Due from state or federal government 741,349 38 18,365 194,926 66,216 17,962
Total assets 741,349 38 18,365 194,926 66,216 23,212
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - - - - - -
Total deferred outflows of resources - - - - - -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 741,349 38 18,365 194,926 66,216 23,212
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 79,307 - 2,569 35,972 66,216 23,012
Due to other funds 662,042 - 15,796 158,747 - -
Total liabilities 741,349 - 18,365 194,719 66,216 23,012
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred infows - - - - - -
Total deferred inflow of resources - - - - - -
Fund balances
Restricted - 38 - 207 - 200
Unassigned - - - - - -
Total fund balance (deficits) - 38 - 207 - 200
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances (deficits) $741,349 $ 38 $ 18,365 $ 194,926 $ 66,216 $ 23,212
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance SheetSchool Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

Title IV Title V Perkins Perkins USDA Edu
Vocational Even Vocational Odd FFVP Jobs

Assets
Cash $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Prepaid - - - - -
Due from other funds - 1,803 2,204 441 691 293,207
Due from state or federal government 17,922 - - - 605 -

Total assets 17,922 1,803 2,204 441 1,296 293,207

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - - - - - _

Total deferred outflows of resources - - - - - _

Total assets and deferred outflows of
resources 17,922 1,803 2,204 441 1,296 293,207

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit - - - - - 293,207
Due to other funds 17,922 - - - -

Total liabilities 17,922 - - - - 293,207

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred infows - - - - - -

Total deferred inflow of resources - - - Z Z Z

Fund balances
Restricted - 1,803 2,204 441 1,296 -
Unassigned - - - - - -
Total fund balance (deficits) - 1,803 2,204 441 1,296 -

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances (deficits) $ 17,922 $ 1,803 $ 2,204 $ 441 $ 1,296 $ 293,207
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance SheetSchool Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

Pilot Mini

Grant

RTTT Instructor
Improv Syst

RTTT Educator
Effectiveness

RIDHS

Bright Stars

Legistlative
Grant

Teaching
American History

Assets
Cash
Prepaid
Due from other funds
Due from state or federal government

400

$

500

$

2,751

2,397

$ -

21,153

Total assets

400

500

2,751

2,397

21,153

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of
resources

400

500

2,751

2,397

21,153

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitie
Due to other funds

21

Total liabilities

21

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred infows

Total deferred inflow of resources

Fund balances
Restricted
Unassigned

(21)

400

500

2,751

2,397

21,153

Total fund balance (deficits)

(21)

400

500

2,751

2,397

21,153

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances (deficits)

$

$ 400

500

$

2,751

$ 2,397

$ 21,153
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Balance SheetSchool Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

RI State

Council RICAPP

Big Yellow CTE
School Bus Categorical 2013

RI Skills

Ccommission

CTE
Categorical Even

Assets
Cash
Prepaid
Due from other funds
Due from state or federal government

$ - $ - $ - $

1,270 1,083 884

43,483

$

10,426

33,945

Total assets

1,270 1,083 884

43,483

10,426

33,945

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of
resources

1,270 1,083 884

43,483

10,426

33,945

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitie
Due to other funds

19,678

Total liabilities

19,678

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred infows

Total deferred inflow of resources

Fund balances
Restricted
Unassigned

1,270 1,083 884

43,483

10,426

14,267

Total fund balance (deficits)

1,270 1,083 884

43,483

10,426

14,267

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources, and fund balances (deficits) $

1,270 $ 1,083 $ 884 $

43,483

$

10,426

33,945
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance SheetSchool Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2019

CTE ELL RI Kindergarden Various School
Course Sequence Categorical 2014 Categorical Project Funds Lunch Total
Assets
Cash $ - $ - - $ - $ - $109,580 $ 109,580
Prepaid - - - - - - 5,250
Due from other funds 301 56,303 - - 14,189 198,254 685,685
Due from state or federal government - - 612 - - - 1,057,995
Total assets 301 56,303 612 - 14,189 307,834 1,858,510
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - - - - - - -
Total deferred outflows of resources - - - - - - -
Total assets and deferred outflows of
resources 301 56,303 612 - 14,189 307,834 1,858,510
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitie - 38,815 - 1,263 43,254 27,332 630,625
Due to other funds - - 4,806 4,596 - 362 864,292
Total liabilities - 38,815 4,806 5,859 43,254 27,694 1,494,917
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred infows - - - - - - -
Total deferred inflow of resources - - - - - - -
Fund balances
Restricted 301 17,488 - - - 280,140 402,732
Unassigned - - (4,194) (5,859) (29,065) - (39,139)
Total fund balance (deficits) 301 17,488 (4,194) (5,859) (29,065) 280,140 363,593
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances (deficits) $ 301 $ 56,303 612 $ - 14,189 $307,834 $1,858,510
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in fund BaBataml Special Revenue Funds

TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Revenues
Federal and state grant income
Other grant income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Education

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses

Fund Balance, July 1, 2018

Fund Balance, June 30, 2019

SPED Title | Part A SPED Title | Part A Title 1l Title 1l
IDEA Disadvantaged IDEA Disadvantaged Part A Language
Part B Youth Preschool Youth Teacher Quality  Acquisition
$826,833 $ - $ 30926 $ 466,873 $ 160,793 $ 27,791
826,833 - 30,926 466,873 160,793 27,791
826,833 - 30,926 466,666 160,793 27,591
- - - 207 - 200
- - - 207 - 200
- 38 - - - -
$ - 8 38 3 - $ 207 % - % 200
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in fund BaBataml Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Title IV Title V Perkins Perkins USDA Edu
Vocational Even Vocational Odd FFVP Jobs

Revenues

Federal and state grant income $ 55,356 $ - $ -9 82,771 $ 5911 $

Other grant income - - - - -

Total revenues 55,356 - - 82,771 5911

Expenditures

Education 55,356 - 132 82,330 4,615
Excess (deficiency) of revenue

over expenditures - - (132) 441 1,296

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds - - - - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures and othe - - (132) 441 1,296
Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 - 1,803 2,336 - -
Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ - % 1,803 $ 2,204 % 441 % 1,296 $
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in fund BaBataml Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Pilot Mini  RTTT Instructor ~ RTTT Educator RIDHS Legistlative Teaching
Grant Improv Syst Effectiveness  Bright Stars Grant American History
Revenues
Federal and state grant income $ 9054 $ - % - $ - $ - 3 -
Other grant income - - - - - -
Total revenues 9,054 - - - - -
Expenditures
Education 9,075 - - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (21) - - - - -
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds - - - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and o
sources over expenditures and othe (21) - - - - -
Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 - 400 500 2,751 2,397 21,153
Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ (21) s 400 $ 500 $ 2,751 $ 2397 $ 21,153
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in fund BaBataml Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

RI State Big Yellow CTE RI Skills CTE
Council RICAPP School Bus Categorical 2013 Commission  Categorical Even
Revenues
Federal and state grant income $ $ - $ 800 $ - $ - $ -
Other grant income - - - - -
Total revenues - 800 - - -
Expenditures
Education - 400 - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures - 400 - - -
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds - - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
sources over expenditures and othe - 400 - - -
Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 1,270 1,083 484 43,483 10,426 14,267
Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 1270 $ 1,083 $ 884 $ 43,483 $ 10,426 $ 14,267
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in fund BaBataml Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

CTE CTE ELL RI Kindergarden Various School
Course Sequence Categorical 2014  Categorical Project Funds Lunch Total
Revenues
Federal and state grant income $ - $ - $ 2050 $ - $ - $965,579  $2,634,737
Other grant income - - - - 1,982 - 1,982
Total revenues - - 2,050 - 1,982 965,579 2,636,719

Expenditures
Education - - 2,050 2,378 21,949 893,505 2,584,599

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures - - - (2,378) (19,967) 72,074 52,120

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds - - - - - .

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

sources over expenditures and othe - - - (2,378) (19,967) 72,074 52,120
Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 301 17,488 (4,194) (3,481) (9,098) 208,066 311,472
Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 301 % 17488 $ (4194) $ (5,859) $ (29,065) $280,140 $ 363,592
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TOWN OF LINCO LN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance SheetCapital Project Funds

June 30, 2019

Open Space  Capital Projects Capital Public School Capital
Reserve Reserve Projects Building Projects Total
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $ - 8 -8 - $ 7,106,000 $ - $ 7,106,000
Investments - - - 9,377,275 - 9,377,275
Due from 657,954 657,954 7,110,968 - - 8,426,876
Total assets 657,954 657,954 7,110,968 16,483,275 - 24,910,151
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows - - - - - -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 657,954 657,954 7,110,968 16,483,275 - 24,910,151
Liabilities
BAN payable - - - 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
Due to other funds - - - 1,996,670 568,811 2,565,481
Total liabilities - - - 26,996,670 568,811 27,565,481
Deferred inflows of resources
None - - - - - -
Fund Balances
Restricted 657,954 657,954 7,110,968 - - 8,426,876
Unassigned - - - (10,513,395) (568,811) (11,082,206
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 657954 % 657,954 $ 7,110,968 $ 16,483,275 $ - $ 24,910,151
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balamital FPoject Funds

For the Yar Ended June 30, 2019

Revenues

Investment income
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Education
Public safety
Public services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

BAN premium
Transfer from (to) other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures
and other uses

Fund balance, July 1, 2018

Fund balance, June 30, 2019

Open Space  Capital Projects Capital Public School Capital
Reserve Reserve Projects Building Projects Total
- -0 $ - % 325,366 % - $ 325,366
- - - - 209,189 209,189
- - - 325,366 209,189 534,555
- - - 10,390,727 778,000 11,168,727
- - 188,637 - - 188,637
- - 414,721 - - 414,721
- - 603,358 10,390,727 778,000 11,772,085
- - (603,358) (10,065,361) (568,811) (11,237,530
- - - 917,750 - 917,750
657,954 657,954 2,239,569 - - 3,555,477
657,954 657,954 2,239,569 917,750 - 4,473,227
657,954 657,954 1,636,211 (9,147,611) (568,811) (6,764,305
- - 5,474,757 (1,365,784) - 4,108,974
657,954 657,954 $ 7,110,968 $(10,513,395) $ (568,811) $ (2,655,331
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Supplementary Information
Tax Collectors Annual Report

June 30, 2019

Balance July Abatements & Amountto be Current Year Balance June
Tax Roll Year 1, 2018 Assessment Additions  Adjustments collected Collections 30, 2019
2018 $ - $ 55943115 $ 8,132 $ (198,241) $ 55,753,006 $ 53,864,990 $ 1,888,01¢
2017 1,729,156 - 1,769 4912 1,735,837 1,508,630 227,207
2016 284,888 - - (1,641) 283,247 128,192 155,05¢
2015 177,336 - - 12,450 189,786 33,483 156,30:
2014 156,173 - - (5,377) 150,796 15,569 135,22;
2013 128,987 - 253 (1,432) 127,808 7,331 120,47
2012 132,878 - - (803) 132,075 10,947 121,12¢
2011 119,343 - - 1,792 121,135 12,760 108,37t
2010 96,503 - - 241 96,744 1,137 95,60"
2009 53,090 - - (159) 52,931 308 52,62:
2008 and prior 202,045 - - (85,595) 116,450 950 115,50(

$ 3,080,399 $ 55943115 $ 10,154 $ (273,853) $ 58,759,815 $ 55,584,297 $ 3,175,519

Less:Allowance for

uncollectible accounts (443,468) (428,380,
$ 2,636,931 $ 2,747,139
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Supplementary Information
Tax Collectors Annual Report

June 30, 2019

Schedule of property valuation assessed as of December 31, 2018:

Reconciliation of Current Year Property Tax Revenue

Valuation Levy Current Year Collections $ 55,584,297
Real property $ 2,594,687,865 $ 60,636,855
Motor vehicles 206,753,559 6,339,064 60-day FY19 Accrual
Tangible personal property 163,876,224 5,756,972 July-August 2019 Collections 559,576
Total $ 2965317648 $ 72,732,890 60-day FY18 Accrual
July-August 2018 Collections (620,022
Less: Exemptions and motor vehicle phase out Current Year Property Tax Revenue $ 55523851
Real property (681,054,290) (15,224,050)
Motor vehicles (51,067,385) (1,565,726)
Total $ 2,233,195972 $ 55943115
FY2019 Tax Collections Summary
(FY 20) Cash Collections
Collections Subject to 6( Sept-June 2019 Total FY 2019 Subject to 60-day FY 19
day FY18 Accrual Collections | Cash Collections Accrual
$ -1$ 53,864,990 $ 53,864,990 $ 528,729
589,159 919,471 1,508,630 14,967
28,920 99,272 128,192 1,985
168 33,315 33,483 4,820
1,272 14,297 15,569 2,527
242 7,089 7,331 1,360
261 10,686 10,947 4,191
- 12,760 12,760 715
- 1,137 1,137 148
- 308 308 38
- 950 950 96
$ 620,022 $ 54,964,275 $ 55,584,297 $ 559,576
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TOWN OF LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Supplementary Information
Annual Supfemental Transparency Report (MTP2)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Annual Supplemental Transparency Report Schedules

required by the State of Rhode IslaBdneral Law8 4512-22.2and8§ 4435-10

Annual Supplemental Transparency Report (MTHFR&venue
Annual Supplemental Transparency Report (MTPEXxpenditures
Combining Schedule of Reportable Government Services with Reconciliation to iIMWIBZicipal
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Education

REVENUE Municipal Department
Current Year Levy Tax Collection $ 54,555,283 $ -
Last Year's Levy Tax Collection 928,883 -
Prior Years Property Tax Collection 170,910 -
Interest & Penalty 427,834 -
PILOT & Tax Treaty (excluded from levy) Collection 68,159 -
Other Local Property Taxes - -
Licenses and Permits 45,203 -
Fines and Forfeitures 67,485 -
Investment Income 154,693 -
Departmental 1,392,868 -
Rescue Run Revenue 1,250,073 -
Police & Fire Detalil 1,019,461 -
Other Local Non-Property Tax Revenues 222,459 -
Tuition - 51,710
Impact Aid - -
Medicaid - 710,559
Federal Stabilization Funds - -
Federal Food Service Reimbursement - 460,952
CDBG - -
COPS Grants - -
SAFER Grants - -
Other Federal Aid Funds - 1,642,697
MV Excise Tax Reimbursement 206,198 -
State PILOT Program - -
Distressed Community Relief Fund - -
Library Resource Aid 202,908 -
Library Construction Aid - -
Public Service Corporation Tax 271,180 -
Meals & Beverage Tax / Hotel Tax 919,712 -
LEA Aid - 12,323,166
Group Home - -
Housing Aid Capital Projects 174,279 -
Housing Aid Bonded Debt 746,835 -
State Food Service Revenue - 11,444
Incentive Aid - -
Property Revaluation Reimbursement 63,067 -
Other State Revenue 7,446,220 2,850
Motor Vehicle Phase Out 703,845 -
Other Revenue - 598,431
Local Appropriation for Education - 41,786,267

Regional Appropriation for Education - -
Supplemental Appropriation for Education - -
Regional Supplemental Appropriation for Education - -
Other Education Appropriation - -
Rounding - -
Total Revenue 71,037,556 $ 57,588,076

¥

Financing Sources: Transfer from Capital Funds $ - $ -
Financing Sources: Transfer from Other Funds - -
Financing Sources: Debt Proceeds - -
Financing Sources: Other - -
Rounding - -

Total Other Financing Sources $ - $ -
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EXPENDITURES

Compensation- Group A

Compensation - Group B

Compensation - Group C

Compensation -Volunteer

Overtime- Group A

Overtime - Group B

Overtime - Group C

Police & Fire Detail

Active Medical Insurance - Group A
Active Medical Insurance - Group B
Active Medical Insurance - Group C
Active Dental Insurance - Group A
Active Dental Insurance - Group B
Active Dental Insurance - Group C
Payroll Taxes

Life Insurance

State Defined Contribution- Group A
State Defined Contribution - Group B
State Defined Contribution - Group C
Other Benefits- Group A

Other Benefits- Group B

Other Benefits- Group C

Local Defined Benefit Pension- Group A
Local Defined Benefit Pension - Group B
Local Defined Benefit Pension - Group C
State Defined Benefit Pension- Group A
State Defined Benefit Pension - Group B
State Defined Benefit Pension - Group C
Other Defined Benefit / Contribution
Purchased Services

Materials/Supplies

Software Licenses

Capital Outlays

Insurance

Maintenance

Vehicle Operations

Utilities

Contingency

Street Lighting

Revaluation

Snow Removal-Raw Material & External Contracts - - - - -

Trash Removal & Recycling

Claims & Settlements

Community Support

Other Operation Expenditures
Tipping Fees

Local Appropriation for Education
Regional Appropriation for Education

Supplemental Appropriation for Education

Other Education Appropriation
Municipal Debt- Principal
Municipal Debt- Interest

School Debt- Principal

School Debt- Interest

Retiree Medical Insurance- Total
Retiree Dental Insurance- Total
OPEB Contribution- Total
Rounding

General Social Centralized Public Parks and Police
Government Finance Services IT Planning Libraries Works Rec Department
$ 435575 $ 529,192 $ 252203 $ 70,699 $ 130,394 $ 612,080 $ 2,084,655 $277,344 $ 2,751,097

- - - - - - - 155,452
1,041 527 297 - - 427 146,116 4,179 98,762

- - - - - - - 853,493
124,815 195,219 94,739 20,802 29,438 155,831 678,779 58,875 678,779
- - - - - - - 29,438
4,487 7,019 3,406 748 1,058 10,446 24,404 2,117 24,404

- - - - - - - 1,058
33,218 40,301 19,210 5,379 9,920 46,600 169,719 21,418 283,101
971 1,303 709 177 355 1,288 3,149 350 8,832
74,764 - - - - - - -
- - - 1,339,811

16,820 25,680 6,769 9,412 8,646 33,125 -
34,901 57,997 13,948 5,041 5,552 50,069 217,640 14,375 9,537
294,395 53,886 43,764 38,997 8,413 39,706 32,385 - -
39,143 33,705 17,918 36,329 3,016 246,620 72,005 44,093 125,298
5,938 - 73,151 - - - - -

- - - - - 1,583,300 116,944
699,649 - - - - - - - -
- - 29,873 - - 7,805 380,575 52,265 41,974

- - 7,111 - 178 - 372,103 8,118 147,389
20,653 16,522 37,689 2,048 4,131 33,665 41,306 33,109 19,534
- - 520,807 -

141,834 - R B

256,546 -

- - - - - - 371,182 -
2,651 - - - - - - -
62,500 - - - - - - -
44,537 547 155 1,681 1,526 1,690 12,431 64,397
- - - - - - 371,412 -
Regional Supplemental Appropriation for Education - - - - - - - -
$ 1,896,057 $ 1,103,733 $ 527,791 $ 255,053 $ 203,394 $ 1,214873 $ 7,371,636 $516,242 $ 6,749,300

Total Expenditures
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EXPENDITURES

Compensation- Group A

Compensation - Group B

Compensation - Group C

Compensation -Volunteer

Overtime- Group A

Overtime - Group B

Overtime - Group C

Police & Fire Detail

Active Medical Insurance - Group A
Active Medical Insurance - Group B
Active Medical Insurance - Group C
Active Dental Insurance - Group A
Active Dental Insurance - Group B
Active Dental Insurance - Group C
Payroll Taxes

Life Insurance

State Defined Contribution- Group A
State Defined Contribution - Group B
State Defined Contribution - Group C
Other Benefits- Group A

Other Benefits- Group B

Other Benefits- Group C

Local Defined Benefit Pension- Group A
Local Defined Benefit Pension - Group B
Local Defined Benefit Pension - Group C
State Defined Benefit Pension- Group A
State Defined Benefit Pension - Group B
State Defined Benefit Pension - Group C
Other Defined Benefit / Contribution
Purchased Services

Materials/Supplies

Software Licenses

Capital Outlays

Insurance

Maintenance

Vehicle Operations

Utilities

Contingency

Street Lighting

Revaluation

Trash Removal & Recycling

Claims & Settlements

Community Support

Other Operation Expenditures
Tipping Fees

Local Appropriation for Education
Regional Appropriation for Education

Supplemental Appropriation for Education

Other Education Appropriation
Municipal Debt- Principal
Municipal Debt- Interest

School Debt- Principal

School Debt- Interest

Retiree Medical Insurance- Total
Retiree Dental Insurance- Total
OPEB Contribution- Total
Rounding

Total Expenditures

Fire Centralized Public Safety Education Total Education
Department Dispatch Other Appropriation Debt OPEB Municipal Department
$ - $ 254951 $ 1,074,488 $ - % - - $ 8,472,677 $ 25,200,716

- - - - - - 155,452 1,906,369
- - - - - - - 4,862,240
- 22,009 405,457 - - - 678,815 -
- - - - - - - 56,274
- - - - - - 853,493 -
- 73,937 298,102 - - - 2,409,316 4,023,503
- - - - - - 29,438 335,131
- - - - - - - 1,729,924
- 2,658 10,717 - - - 91,464 186,218
- - - - - - 1,058 11,758
- - - - - - - 103,856
- 21,071 112,595 - - - 762,532 743,663
- 509 1,844 - - - 19,487 238,235
- - - - - - - 570,742
- - - - - - - 48,335
- - - - - - 74,764 52,845
- - - - - - - 6,529
- - - - - - - 3,337
- - - - - - 1,339,811 -
- - - - - - - 376,328
- - 169,008 - - - 269,460 3,370,488
- - - - - - - 273,303
- 30,776 5,632 - - - 445,468 -
- - 74,056 - - - 585,602 11,834,453
- - 71,324 - - - 689,451 824,548
- - - - - - 79,089 116,835
- - 83,922 - - - 1,784,166 178,435
- - - - - - 699,649 230,522
- - 6,772 - - - 519,264 279,140
- - 51,586 - - - 586,485 35,691
- 3,447 33,468 - - - 245,572 695,372
- - - - - - 520,807 -
- - - - - - 141,834 -
Snow Removal-Raw Material & External Contracts - - - - - - 256,546 -
- - - - - - 371,182 -
- - - - - - 2,651 -
- - - - - - 62,500 -
- - 9,548 - - - 136,512 320,239
- - - - - - 371,412 -
- - - 41,786,267 - - 41,786,267 -
Regional Supplemental Appropriation for Education - - - - - - - -
- - - - 430,000 - 430,000 -
- - - - 100,686 - 100,686 -
- - - - 1,715,000 - 1,715,000 -
- - - - 774,450 - 774,450 -
- - - - - - - 621,860
- - - - - 1,210,646 1,210,646
$ - $ 409,359 _$ 2,408,518 $ 41,786,267 _$ 3,020,136 _$ 1,210,646 $ 68,673,004 $ 59,236,889
Financing Uses: Transfer to Capital Funds $ 3,555,477 $ -
Financing Uses: Transfer to Other Funds - -
Financing Uses: Payment to Bond Escrow Agent - -
Financing Uses: Other - -
Total Other Financing Uses $ 3,555,477 $ -
Net Change in Fund Balancé (1,190,924) (1,648,813
Fund Balancel- beginning of year $8,837,046 $ 1,693,919
Funds removed from Reportable Government Services (RGS) - -
Funds added to Reportable Government Services (RGS) - -
Prior period adjustments - -
Misc. Adjustment - (1,028)
Fund Balancé - beginning of year adjusted 8,837,046 1,692,891
Rounding - -
Fund Balancé - end of year $ 7,646,122 $ 44,078

* and Net Position if Enterprise Fund activity is included in the transparency portal report.
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Tatal Other Total Other Net Change  Beginning Fund Restated Beginning Ending
Per Audited Fund Financial Statements Total Finarncing Total Financing in Fund Fund Balance® Prior Period Fund Balance® Fund Balancs®
Fund Description Revenue Sources Expenditures Uses Balance” | Deficit) Adjustrment [Deficit) [ Deficit)
Fund Balance® - per MTP-2 at June 30, 2018 L] E,B37 046 &,B37,045
No funds removed from RGS for fiscal 2018 - -
No funds added to RGS for Fiscol 2018 - -
No misc. adjustments maode for fiscal 20018 - -
Fund Balance® - per MTP-2 at bune 30, 2018 adjusted -1 E,B37,046 B B37,045
General Fund 5 TO01B095 5 27501 % 35,936,604 5 45,341,744 5 [1,232,840) & E 545677 5 B545677 & 7,312,837
Paolice Detail 1,019,461 - 950,044 27,501 41,916 291 369 291,369 333,285
Taotals per audited financial statements 5 TLO3TSS6 5 27501 5 26,886,737 5 45,369,245 5 (1,180,934 & EE37.0M6 5 BB37.046 5 7,646,122
Reconciliation from financial statements to MTPZ
Reclassify transfer of municipal approgriation to Education Department as expenditure on MTP2 5 5 - $ 41,7B6,267.00 5 (41,785,267.00) & - L] - 5 - 5 -
Eliminate transfers between Funds reported on MTP2:
- from Police Details wo General Fund (27,501} - [7,501) - - -
Rounding - - - - - -
Tatals Per MTPZ % 7LO037556 % - 1 BE673,004 5 3,555,477 5 (1,190,924) S B.B37. 046 5 BEBITOM6 5  7.646,122

! and Met Pasitian if Enterprise Fund activity is included in the transparency portal report.
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